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MATURITY SCHEDULES

$25,205,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2006 N9

The G.O. Notes will be dated the Expected Date of Delivery, will bear interest at the rates shown below, payable
semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of such year, commencing August 15, 2007, and will mature on February 15 in
the years and in the amounts shown below. The G.O. Notes are not subject to optional redemption.

Maturing Interest Maturing Interest
(February 15) Amount Rate Yield (February 15) Amount Rate Yield
2008 $1,440,000 4.125% 3.53% 2013 $3,395,000 4.25% 3.56%
2009 2,410,000 4.125 3.56 2014 3,240,000 4.25 3.59
2010 2,445,000 4.125 3.56 2015 3,070,000 5.00 3.63
2011 3,140,000 4.25 3.54 2016 3,120,000 5.00 3.67
2012 2,945,000 4.25 3.55

$19,105,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2006 B10

The G.O. Bonds will be dated the Expected Date of Delivery, will bear interest at the rates shown below, payable
semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 2007, and will mature on February 15 in
the years and in the amounts shown below. The G.O. Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2018 are subject to optional
redemption on any date on or after February 15, 2017, as provided herein.

Maturing Interest Maturing Interest
(February 15) Amount Rate Yield (February 15) Amount Rate Yield
2017 $3,185,000 5.00% 3.71% 2021 $2,815,000 5.00% 3.85%
2018 2,595,000 5.00 3.75 2022 2,900,000 5.00 3.87
2019 2,665,000 5.00 3.79 2023 2,205,000 5.00 3.89
2020 2,740,000 5.00 3.82

$22,100,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2006 S11

The G.O. BANs will be dated the Expected Date of Delivery, and will mature on January 2, 2008. The G.O. BANSs are subject
to optional redemption, in whole or in part, on any date on or after March 2, 2007. Interest will be payable at maturity, at the rate
shown below.

Interest
Amount Rate Yield
$22,100,000 3.70% 3.65%



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any
representation other than as contained in this Official Statement in connection with the sale of these securities and, if given
or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon. This Official Statement does not constitute an
offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of these securities by a person in any jurisdiction
in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The information and expressions of opinion
herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder
shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City since the date

hereof.
contained in such Act.

These securities have not been registered pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, in reliance upon exemptions
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INTRODUCTION TO THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The purpose of this Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices, is to set forth certain information
concerning the City of Milwaukee (the “City”), located in Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, and to set forth information
concerning the following securities issued by the City:
$25,205,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2006 N9 (the “G.O. Notes” or the “Notes™)
$19,105,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 B10 (the “G.O. Bonds” or the “Bonds™)
$22,100,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 S11 (the “G.O. BANs”)
The G.O. Notes, the G.O. Bonds and the G.O. BANSs shall be collectively referred to herein as the “Offered Obligations.”
The following summary statement is furnished solely to provide limited introductory information regarding the City’s Offered

Obligations, and does not purport to be comprehensive. All such information is qualified in its entirety by reference to the
more detailed descriptions appearing in this Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto.

SUMMARY STATEMENT-THE G.O. NOTES

The following material is supported, where required, by the detailed information and financial statements appearing in this
Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto.

Issuer: City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
Issue: $25,205,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2006 N9.
Dated Date: The Expected Date of Delivery, which is anticipated to be December 20, 2006.
Amounts and Maturities: G.O. Notes
February 15  Amount February 15 Amount

2008 $1,440,000 2013 $3,395,000

2009 2,410,000 2014 3,240,000

2010 2,445,000 2015 3,070,000

2011 3,140,000 2016 3,120,000

2012 2,945,000
Interest Payment Dates: Each February 15 and August 15 commencing August 15, 2007.
Denominations: $5,000 or integral multiples thereof.
Purpose: The Notes are being issued pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes for the

public purpose of financing various public improvement projects and fiscal
requirements of the City.

Security: Principal and interest on the Notes will be payable out of receipts from an irrevocable
ad-valorem tax levied on all taxable property within the City.

Authority for Issuance: The Common Council of the City has authorized the issuance and sale of the Notes in
accordance with the provisions of Chapters 65 and 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Form of Issuance: The Notes will be issued in Book-Entry-Only form, fully registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York,
which will act as security depository for the Notes. (See “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY
SYSTEM?” herein).



Tax Status of Interest:

Redemption Feature;

Official Statement:

Professionals:

Delivery:

Reoffering:

Continuing Disclosure Certificate:

Bond Counsel are of the opinion that under existing law, interest on the Offered
Obligations is not includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal
income tax purposes. If there is continuing compliance with the applicable
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), Bond Counsel are of
the opinion that interest on the Offered Obligations will continue to be excluded from
the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel
are further of the opinion that the Offered Obligations are not “private activity bonds”
within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code. Accordingly, interest on the
Offered Obligations is not an item of tax preference for purposes of computing
individual or corporate alternative minimum taxable income. However, interest on the
Offered Obligations is includable in corporate earnings and profits and therefore must
be taken into account when computing corporate alternative minimum taxable income
for purposes of the corporate alternative minimum tax. Interest on the Offered
Obligations is not exempt from Wisconsin income taxes. (See “TAX MATTERS”
herein).

The Notes are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The City will provide the original purchaser of the Notes and Bonds with up to 50
copies, of this Official Statement, within seven business days following the award of
the Notes.

Bond Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP
Chicago, Illinois

Hurtado, S.C.
Wauwatosa, Wisconsin

Financial Advisor: Robert W. Baird & Co.
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Bagley Financial Corp.
Detroit, Michigan

Delivery of the Notes will be on or about December 20, 2006 at the expense of the
City, through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York.

The public reoffering prices(s) or yield(s) of the Notes are set forth on the inside front
cover page of the Final Official Statement.

In order to assist bidders in complying with the continuing disclosure requirements of
SEC Rule 15¢2-12 and as part of the City’s contractual obligation arising from its
acceptance of the successful bidder’s proposal, at the time of the delivery of the Notes
the City will provide an executed copy of its Continuing Disclosure Certificate. (See
“RULE 15c2-12" herein).

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank)



SUMMARY STATEMENT-THE G.O. BONDS

The following material is supported, where required, by the detailed information and financial statements appearing in this
Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto.

Issuer:
Issue:
Dated Date:

Amounts and Maturities:

Interest Payment Dates:
Denominations:

Purpose:

Security:

Authority for Issuance:

Form of Issuance:

Tax Status of Interest:

Redemption Feature:

City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
$19,105,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 B10.

Expected Date of Delivery, which is anticipated to be December 20, 2006.

G.0. Bonds
February 15 Amount February 15 Amount
2017 $3,185,000 2021 $2,815,000
2018 2,595,000 2022 2,900,000
2019 2,665,000 2023 2,205,000
2020 2,740,000

Each February 15 and August 15 commencing August 15, 2007.
$5,000 or integral multiples thereof.

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Chapters 65 and 67, of the Wisconsin Statutes
for the purpose of financing various public improvement projects and fiscal
requirements of the City.

Principal and interest on the Bonds will be payable out of receipts from an irrevocable
ad-valorem tax levied on all taxable property within the City.

The Common Council of the City has authorized the issuance and sale of the Bonds in
accordance with the provisions of Chapters 65 and 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

The Bonds will be issued in Book-Entry-Only form, fully registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York,
which will act as security depository for the Bonds. (See “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY
SYSTEM?” herein).

Bond Counsel are of the opinion that under existing law, interest on the Offered
Obligations is not includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal
income tax purposes. If there is continuing compliance with the applicable
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™), Bond Counsel are of
the opinion that interest on the Offered Obligations will continue to be excluded from
the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel
are further of the opinion that the Offered Obligations are not “private activity bonds”
within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code. Accordingly, interest on the
Offered Obligations is not an item of tax preference for purposes of computing
individual or corporate alternative minimum taxable income. However, interest on the
Offered Obligations is includable in corporate earnings and profits and therefore must
be taken into account when computing corporate alternative minimum taxable income
for purposes of the corporate alternative minimum tax. Interest on the Offered
Obligations is not exempt from Wisconsin income taxes. (See “TAX MATTERS”
herein).

The Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2018 are subject to redemption prior to
maturity. (See “REDEMPTION PROVISIONS” herein.)



Official Statement: The City will provide the original purchaser of the Notes and Bonds with up to 50
copies, of this Official Statement within seven business days following the award of
the Bonds.

Professionals: Bond Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP
Chicago, Illinois

Hurtado, S.C.
Wauwatosa, Wisconsin

Financial Advisor: Robert W. Baird & Co.
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Bagley Financial Corp.
Detroit, Michigan

Delivery: Delivery of the Bonds will be on or about December 20, 2006 at the expense of the
City, through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York.

Reoffering: The public reoffering prices(s) or yield(s) of the Bonds are set forth on the inside front
cover page of the Final Official Statement.

Continuing Disclosure Certificate:  In order to assist bidders in complying with the continuing disclosure requirements of
SEC Rule 15c¢2-12 and as part of the City’s contractual obligation arising from its
acceptance of the successful bidder’s proposal, at the time of the delivery of the Bonds
the City will provide an executed copy of its Continuing Disclosure Certificate. (See
“RULE 15¢2-12” herein).

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank)



Issuer:
Issue:
Dated Date:
Maturity:
Principal:

Interest Payment Dates:

Denominations:

Purpose:

Security:

Authority for Issuance:

Form of Issuance:

Tax Status of Interest:

SUMMARY STATEMENT-THE G.O. BANS

City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

$22,100,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 S11.
The Expected Date of Delivery, which is anticipated to be December 20, 2006.
January 2, 2008.

$22,100,000

Payable at maturity; calculated on the basis of 30-day months and a 360-day year, term
of 372 days assuming a December 20, 2006 delivery date.

$5,000 or integral multiples thereof.

The G.O. BANSs are issued for the purpose of providing interim financing for sewer
projects (including the payment of outstanding indebtedness of the City issued for such
purpose) in anticipation of receiving a Clean Water Fund loan from the State.

Principal and interest on the G.O. BANs will be payable out of receipts from an
irrevocable ad-valorem tax levied on all taxable property within the City.

The City has applied for Clean Water Fund (the “CWF”) loans from the State to
finance the Sewer projects. As CWF loan disbursements are received from the State,
the G.O. BANs will be redeemed. CWF loans are approved for specific projects, and
not all projects financed by the G.O. BANs may be approved by the State. For projects
not financed by the CWF, the City intends to issue long-term debt prior to the maturity
of the G.O. BANSs to permanently finance any remaining principal. While the proceeds
of the CWF loan are anticipated to be used to repay the G.O. BANs, the proceeds are
not pledged to the repayment of the G.O. BANs

The Common Council of the City has authorized the issuance and sale of the G.O.
BANSs in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 65 and 67 of the Wisconsin
Statutes.

The G.O. BANs will be issued in Book-Entry-Only form, fully registered in the name
of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company of New York, New
York, which will act as security depository for the G.O. BANs. (See “BOOK-ENTRY-
ONLY SYSTEM” herein).

Bond Counsel are of the opinion that under existing law, interest on the Offered
Obligations is not includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal
income tax purposes. If there is continuing compliance with the applicable
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™), Bond Counsel are of
the opinion that interest on the Offered Obligations will continue to be excluded from
the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel
are further of the opinion that the Offered Obligations are not “private activity bonds”
within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code. Accordingly, interest on the
Offered Obligations is not an item of tax preference for purposes of computing
individual or corporate alternative minimum taxable income. However, interest on the
Offered Obligations is includable in corporate earnings and profits and therefore must
be taken into account when computing corporate alternative minimum taxable income
for purposes of the corporate alternative minimum tax. Interest on the Offered
Obligations is not exempt from Wisconsin income taxes. (See “TAX MATTERS”
herein).



Redemption Feature:

Official Statement:

Professionals:

Delivery:

Reoffering:

Continuing Disclosure Certificate:

The G.O. BANSs are subject to redemption prior to maturity. (See “REDEMPTION
PROVISIONS” herein.)

The City will provide the original purchaser of the G.O. BANs with up to 50 copies of
this Official Statement within seven business days following the award of the G.O.
BANS.

Bond Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP
Chicago, Illinois

Hurtado, S.C.
Wauwatosa, Wisconsin

Financial Advisor: Robert W. Baird & Co.
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Bagley Financial Corp.
Detroit, Michigan

Delivery of the G.O. BANs will be on or about December 20, 2006 at the expense of
the City, through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New
York.

The public reoffering price(s) or yield(s) of the G.O. BANs are set forth on the inside
front cover page of the Final Official Statement.

In order to assist bidders in complying with the continuing disclosure requirements of
SEC Rule 15¢2-12 and as part of the City’s contractual obligation arising from its
acceptance of the successful bidder’s proposal, at the time of the delivery of the G.O.
BANSs the City will provide an executed copy of its Continuing Disclosure Certificate.
(See “RULE 15c¢2-12" herein).

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank)



THE G.O. NOTES AND G.O. BONDS

AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds are being issued pursuant to Chapters 65 and 67, of the Wisconsin Statutes for various
public improvement projects and fiscal requirements of the City, and to pay the associated financing costs. The Common
Council of the City adopted resolutions on December 13, 2005, January 18, 2006, and July 31, 2006 which authorize the
issuance of the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds.

Proceeds of the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds are anticipated to be used for various public improvements and the refunding of
certain outstanding obligations of the City as follows:

Renewal & Development Projects $765,000
Library Improvements 660,000
Public Buildings 8,855,000
Parking Facilities 585,000
Fire Stations & Improvements 2,300,000
Police Facilities 255,000
Bridges & Viaducts 1,005,000
Sewers 1,695,000
Street Improvements 105,000
Parks & Public Grounds 35,000
Sewer Maintenance Fund 1,890,000
Tax Incremental Districts 24,375,000
Refunding

2006 P6 (1996 Refunding) 1,785,000
TOTAL $44,310,000
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SECURITY FOR THE G.O. NOTES AND G.O. BONDS

The G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds shall be general obligations of the City, and payment thereof is secured by a pledge of the
full faith and credit of the City. The City is authorized and required to levy on all taxable property in the City such ad-
valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or amount, as may be necessary to meet the debt service requirements on the G.O.
Notes and G.O. Bonds.

Under and by virtue of Sections 67.05(10) and 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, the City is obligated to levy a direct annual tax
sufficient in amount to pay and for the express purpose of paying the interest on such Notes and Bonds as it falls due, and
also to pay and discharge the principal thereof at maturity. The City is, and shall be, without power to repeal such levy or
obstruct the collection of such tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.

Under Section 67.035, Wisconsin Statutes, all taxes levied for paying principal and interest on valid notes or bonds are
declared to be without limitation. Under Section 65.06(18), Wisconsin Statutes, the omission from the budget of the payment
of interest on or the principal of any bonded debt of the City when due shall not prevent the placing of the same on the tax
roll for the levy and the collection of the tax and the payment of the money therefor.

MATURITY AND INTEREST RATES

The G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds are to be dated the Expected Date of Delivery, and will bear interest from that date at the
rates, and shall mature each February 15 in the amounts and on the dates as set forth on the inside front cover page of this
Official Statement. Interest on the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds will be payable on August 15, 2007 and thereafter
semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each year and is calculated on the basis of 30-day months and a 360-day year.

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS
The G.O. Notes are not subject to redemption prior to their maturity.

The G.O. Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2018 will be subject to redemption prior to their maturity, at the option of
the City, on any date on or after February 15, 2017 at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for their
redemption. If less than all outstanding G.O. Bonds are called for redemption, the G.O. Bonds shall be called in such order
of maturity as shall be determined by the City. If less than all of the G.O. Bonds of any maturity are called for redemption,
the particular G.O. Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by lot. Notice of redemption shall be mailed,
postage prepaid, to the owners of any G.O. Bonds to be redeemed in whose name such G.O. Bonds are registered as of a
record date, which shall be 45 days prior to the redemption date. While in Book Entry Form, as the Registered Owner, DTC
will receive the Redemption Notice. The City is not responsible for DTC’s notification of redemption to Participants and
Beneficial Owners.

STATUTORY BORROWING LIMITATION

Wisconsin Statutes limit direct general obligation debt the City may issue. The G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds are within these
limitations. (See “DEBT STRUCTURE?” herein for further details).
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THE G.O. BANs

AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Common Council of the City has authorized the issuance and sale of the G.O. BANs for the public purpose of providing
interim financing for Sewer projects, by the adoption of authorizing resolutions on January 18, 2006 and October 24, 2006.

SECURITY FOR THE G.O. BANS

The G.O. BANSs shall be general obligations of the City, and payment thereof is secured by a pledge of the full faith and
credit of the City. The City is authorized and required to levy on all taxable property in the City such ad-valorem taxes,
without limitation as to rate or amount, as may be necessary to meet the debt service requirements on the G.O. BANS).

Under and by virtue of Sections 67.05(10), Wisconsin Statutes, the City is obligated to levy a direct annual tax sufficient in
amount to pay and for the express purpose of paying the interest on the G.O. BANs as it falls due, and also to pay and
discharge the principal thereof at maturity. The City is, and shall be, without power to repeal such levy or obstruct the
collection of such tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.

Under Section 67.035, Wisconsin Statutes, all taxes levied for paying principal and interest on valid notes or bonds are
declared to be without limitation. Under Section 65.06(18), Wisconsin Statutes, the omission from the budget of the payment
of interest on or the principal of any bonded debt of the City when due shall not prevent the placing of the same on the tax
roll for the levy and the collection of the tax and the payment of the money therefor.

The City has applied for Clean Water Fund (the “CWF”) loans from the State to finance the Sewer projects. As CWF loan
disbursements are received from the State, the G.O. BANs will be redeemed. CWF loans are approved for specific projects,
and not all projects financed by the G.O. BANs may be approved by the State. For projects not financed by the CWF, the
City intends to issue long-term debt prior to the maturity of the G.O. BANSs to permanently finance any remaining principal.
While the proceeds of the CWF loan are anticipated to be used to repay the G.O. BANS, the proceeds are not pledged to the
repayment of the G.O. BANS.

MATURITY AND INTEREST RATES

The G.O. BANSs are to be dated the Expected Date of Delivery, and will bear interest from that date at the rate as set forth on
the inside front cover page of this Official Statement, and shall mature on January 2, 2008. Interest on the G.O. BANs will be
payable at maturity and is calculated on the basis of 30-day months and a 360-day year.

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS

The G.O. BANSs will be subject to redemption prior to their maturity, at the option of the City, on any date on or after March
2, 2007 at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for their redemption. If less than all outstanding G.O. BANs
are called for redemption, the particular G.O. BANs to be redeemed shall be selected by lot. Notice of redemption shall be
mailed, postage prepaid, to the owners of any G.O. BANs to be redeemed in whose name such G.O. BANs are registered as
of a record date, which shall be 45 days prior to the redemption date. While in Book Entry Form, as the Registered Owner,
DTC will receive the Redemption Notice. The City is not responsible for DTC’s notification of redemption to Participants
and Beneficial Owners.

STATUTORY BORROWING LIMITATION

Wisconsin Statutes limit direct general obligation debt the City may issue. The G.O. BANSs are within these limitations. (See
“Debt Structure” herein for further details.)
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INVESTMENT POLICIES

The City may invest any of its funds not immediately needed in accordance with Section 66.0603 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
The City, through Common Council Resolution 930358, adopted July 6, 1993, has instructed the City Treasurer to invest City
funds, including Milwaukee Public Schools (MPS) funds, in: (a) Certificates of Time Deposit at approved public
depositories limited to the equity capital or net worth of the financial institution with collateralization required when total
deposits at any institution exceed $500,000; (b) Repurchase Agreements with public depository institutions; (c) the State of
Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool; (d) U.S. Treasury and Agency instruments and (e) commercial paper which
has a rating in the highest or second highest rating category assigned by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group, Moody’s
Investors Service, Inc., or some other similar nationally recognized rating agency.

To the extent possible, the City Treasurer attempts to match investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. No limits
have been placed on how much of the portfolio can be invested in any of the above investment categories.

The State of Wisconsin Investment Board (“SWIB”) provides the Local Government Investment Pool as a subset of the State
Investment Fund (the “Fund”). The Local Government Investment Pool includes deposits from elective participants
consisting of over 1,000 municipalities and other public entities. The Fund also consists of cash balances of participants
required to keep their cash balances in the Fund. These required participants include the State General Fund, State agencies
and departments and Wisconsin Retirement System reserves. The Local Government Investment Pool portion of the Fund is
additionally secured as to credit risk.

The Local Government Investment Pool is a local option City depository. The City utilizes the Local Government
Investment Pool in a manner similar to a “money market” account. When other investment options provide more favorable
results, such options are utilized. December 31, 2005, the City had approximately 18.79% ($111,523,324.86) of its and
MPS’s investments deposited in the Local Government Investment Pool.

SWIB invests the assets of the Fund, which includes assets of the Local Government Investment Pool. Overall policy
direction for SWIB is established by an independent, eight-member Board of Trustees (the “Trustees”). The Trustees
establish long-term investment policies, set guidelines for each investment portfolio and monitor investment performance.

The objectives of the Fund are to provide (in order of priority) safety of principal, liquidity, and a reasonable rate of return.
The Fund includes retirement trust funds cash balances pending longer-term investment by other investment divisions. The
Fund also acts as the State’s cash management fund and provides the State’s General Fund with liquidity for operating
expenses. The Fund is strategically managed as a mutual fund with a longer average life than a money market fund. This
strategic advantage is made possible by the mandatory investment of State funds for which the cash flow requirements can be
determined significantly in advance. Because of the role played by the Fund, the cash balances available for investment vary
daily as cash is accumulated or withdrawn from various funds.

A copy of SWIB’s annual report may be obtained by submitting a written request to the State of Wisconsin Investment
Board, P.O. Box 7842, Madison, Wl 53707-7842.
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THE CITY
LOCATION, ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNMENT

GENERAL

The City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the “City™), is located on the western shore of Lake Michigan in southeastern Wisconsin.
The City is the hub of the metropolitan area and a thriving place to live and work. The City is Wisconsin’s largest city with a
population of approximately 590,370 and is the principal trade, service and financial center of southeastern Wisconsin. The
surrounding Standard Consolidated Metropolitan Statistical Area (SCMSA) consisting of Milwaukee, Waukesha,
Washington, Ozaukee, and Racine Counties, has a population of nearly 1.6 million. This SCMSA is the 24" largest
metropolitan area in the United States of America.

The Port of Milwaukee provides access to the sea lanes of the world. General Mitchell International Airport is served by
domestic and international airlines. Five rail lines serve the City and provide transportation links throughout the United
States. The City is also connected with the interstate highway system.

The City was incorporated as a city on January 31, 1846, pursuant to the laws of the territory of Wisconsin. Wisconsin
gained statehood in 1848. The City, operating under a Home Rule Charter since 1874, has a council-mayor form of
government.

ELECTED OFFICIALS

The Mayor, City Attorney, Comptroller, Treasurer and Common Council members are elected officials of the City. Local
elections are non-partisan. The Mayor, City Attorney, Comptroller and Treasurer are elected at-large for identical four-year
terms.

The Common Council represents fifteen Aldermanic districts. Each Alderperson represents, and is elected from, an
aldermanic district with a population of approximately 40,000.

CITY OFFICIALS
As of April 6, 2004
(initial year in office follows name)

Mayor Tom Barrett (2004)
City Attorney Grant F. Langley (1984)
City Comptroller W. Martin Morics (1992)
City Treasurer Wayne F. Whittow (1976)

COMMON COUNCIL

Ashanti Hamilton (2004) Robert W. Puente (2004)
Joe Davis, Sr. (2003) Michael J. Murphy (1989)
Michael S. D’ Amato (1996) Joseph A. Dudzik (2002)
Robert J. Bauman (2004) James N. Witkowiak (2004)
James A. Bohl, Jr. (2000) Terry L. Witkowski (2003)
Michael McGee, Jr. (2004) T. Anthony Zielinski (2004)
Willie C. Wade (2003) Willie L. Hines, Jr. (1996)
Robert G. Donovan (2000)

The terms of all the above elected positions expire in April, 2008.
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PuBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES

The City, employing approximately 7,306 people (some in a seasonal capacity), is charged with primary responsibility for
public safety (via its police, fire and health departments); public works (including refuse removal and a City owned water
utility); various cultural and recreational services including a library system; and general municipal administration. City
government also participates in housing and neighborhood programs through separate housing and redevelopment authorities.
These two latter authorities have the ability to directly borrow using revenue backed financings.

Other major local governmental units and their related government services are the Milwaukee Public Schools (education);
Milwaukee County (parks, airport/mass transit/highways, social services and court system); Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District (wastewater treatment); and, the Milwaukee Area Technical College (higher education). Wisconsin
Statutes require Milwaukee Public School purpose debt to be issued by the City. The remaining governmental units cited
each retain the statutory authority to issue general obligation debt.

Two special purpose governmental units exist with the ability to issue debt and tax on a limited revenue basis. The first is the
Southeastern Wisconsin Professional Baseball District (the “District”), a public entity created by State legislation
encompassing five southeastern Wisconsin counties, to finance construction/operations of a new baseball facility (“Miller
Park™) for the National League Milwaukee Brewers baseball club. Miller Park opened in March, 2001. The District has
issued $199 million of revenue bonds supported by a five-county, one-tenth of one percent sales tax and other ancillary
revenue streams. In addition, $45 million of lease certificates of participation have been sold to finance acquisition and
installation of facility equipment, scoreboards, etc.

The second special purpose governmental unit is the Wisconsin Center District, which oversees construction/operation of the
Midwest Airlines Center, Milwaukee’s major convention complex. This complex also includes the existing US Cellular
Arena and the Milwaukee Auditorium facilities, formerly known as “MECCA”. The Midwest Airlines Center was financed
by $185 million of revenue bonds backed by dedicated sales tax revenues from the lodging, restaurant, and vehicle rental
areas. Phase one of the Midwest Airlines Center was completed during 1998. Phase two was completed in 1999. In 2001,
$30 million of Bonds were issued to renovate the Milwaukee Auditorium.

In addition to the facilities noted above, Milwaukee is home to a modern 17,000+ seat indoor sports and concert venue, the
Bradley Center, located in the heart of downtown. This facility serves the National Basketball Association Milwaukee
Bucks, the Marquette University Golden Eagles basketball team and the Milwaukee Admirals International Hockey League
club. Milwaukee also boasts a lakefront Milwaukee Art Museum as well as major symphony, ballet companies, theatre and
other performing arts.

May 4, 2001, marked the unveiling of phase one of Milwaukee Art Museum’s new expansion and renovation, which
combines art, dramatic architecture and landscape design. The new Quadracci Pavilion, the first Santiago Calatrava-designed
building in the United States, features a 90-foot high glass-walled reception hall enclosed by the Burke Brise Soleil, a
sunscreen that can be raised or lowered creating a unique moving sculpture.

Finally, the Milwaukee area is the site of a number of higher education institutions, including Marquette University, the
University of Wisconsin — Milwaukee, Alverno College, Mount Mary College and the Milwaukee School of Engineering.
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Approximately 6,070 of the City’s full-time employees are members of bargaining units represented by unions. Labor

agreements are in place through December 31, 2006 with 18 unions representing approximately all but 300 of the City’s
represented employees.
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GENERAL, DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

GENERAL

The City, with a population of 590,370, represents approximately 40 percent of the population of the greater metropolitan
area. Based on the last U.S. Census, population in the four county retail trade area surrounding Milwaukee is 1,512,400 and
represents 28% of the population of the State of Wisconsin. Over 74 percent of metropolitan Milwaukee’s population is
comprised of residents within the working ages of 18 and older. Forty-eight percent of the Milwaukee SMSA (Milwaukee,
Washington, Waukesha and Ozaukee Counties) residents are under the age of 35.

CITY OF MILWAUKEE
SELECTED ECONOMIC DATA

Adjusted Gross

Income Per

Year Population Return
2006 590,370 N/A

2005 592,765 $30,988
2004 593,920 29,922
2003 595,245 29,402
2002 595,958 28,694
2001 595,508 29,056
2000 596,974 28,834

Sources: Wisconsin Department of Administration, Demographic Service Center and the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Division

of Research and Analysis.
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BUILDING PERMITS

Another indicator of economic growth is the activity in the building industry. The following table indicates building permit
activity during the period 2001 through December 2005.

General Total

Year Value Permits Issued
2001 $388,613,133 2,752
2002 337,028,003 2,756
2003 334,954,154 2,884
2004 294,811,125 2,784
2005 529,251,733 2,599
Residential Building
Single Family Multi-Family Total Permits
Year Value # Of Units Value # Of Units Value # Of Units Issued
2001 $17,597,336 141 $81,508,896 401 $99,106,232 542 168
2002 18,726,773 135 53,525,650 562 72,252,423 697 172
2003 20,069,077 159 91,792,191 666 111,861,268 825 187
2004 29,896,986 194 48,346,002 553 78,242,988 747 244
2005 33,751,976 193 113,713,239 500 147,465,215 693 231
Commercial Building
Year Value Permits Issued
2001 $106,537,251 99
2002 87,778,047 89
2003 61,824,799 96
2004 63,485,441 89
2005 166,425,515 106
Public Building
Year Value Permits Issued
2001 $64,534,354 406
2002 24,122,613 159
2003 54,241,508 202
2004 34,176,914 95
2005 51,889,921 49
Alterations and Additions
Year Value Permits Issued
2001 $118,435,296 2,079
2002 152,874,920 2,336
2003 107,026,579 2,399
2004 118,905,782 2,356
2005 163,471,082 2,213

Note: Miller Park, the City’s new major league baseball venue, was completed in March 2001. This $350 + million project is not
incorporated within the above schedules.

Sources: Development Center, Department of City Development. Data accumulated from monthly reports submitted to U.S. Department
of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, Construction Statistics Division, Washington D.C.
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LEADING BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL FIRMS
LocATED WITHIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

The listing of large employers in the Milwaukee County area which follows, reveals the diversity of Milwaukee County’s
economic base. The largest of these are shown in the following list which includes only employers with the majority or all of

their employment in Milwaukee County.

2005
Employment

Employer Estimates Type of Business or Service
Aurora Health Care 14,247 Health Care
U.S. Government (Includes Zablocki V.A.

Medical Center) 10,800 Government
Covenant Health Care 9,100 Health Care
City of Milwaukee 7,306 Government
Milwaukee Public Schools 7,137 Education
M&I Marshall & llsley 6,729 Holding company banking/finance and data services
Columbia-St. Mary’s 5,749 Health Care
Northwestern Mutual Life 4,687 Insurance
University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee 4,307 Education
Medical College of Wisconsin 4,052 Medical school/academic/health care
Rockwell Automation (formerly Allen-Bradley) 3,800 Manufacturer, electrical/electronic products
Froedert Memorial Lutheran Hospital 3,720 Health Care
Harley-Davidson Motor Company 3,611 Manufacturer, motorcycles
US Bank (formerly Firstar Corporation) 3,350 Finance, banking
WE Energies 3,300 Electric/natural gas utility
SBC Communications (Ameritech Corporation) 2,766 Communications
Milwaukee County 2,638 Government
Briggs and Stratton 2,600 Manufacturer, small engines, automotive locks & keys
Children’s Hospital of Wisconsin 2,500 Health care
Assurant Health Care @ 2,083 Health care
Marquette University 1,843 Higher Education
Miller Brewing Company 1,800 Manufacturer of beer and aluminum containers
Johnson Controls, Inc. Manufacturer, of electronic control systems,

1,786 automobile interior modules

Journal Communications 1,700 Publishing, printing and broadcasting
Delphi Automotive Systems 1,500 Manufacturer, automotive electronic engine control

(General Motors)

W Reflects full-time equivalent employees (FTES).

modules, catalytic converters, and automotive

Source: The 2006 Business Journal, 2005 Wisconsin Manufacturers and Business Service Directories and employer surveys February-

March 2006.
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EMPLOYMENT AND INDUSTRY

During 2005, the City’s unemployment rate averaged approximately 7.3%. Presented below are unemployment rates for the
City of Milwaukee, as compared to the State of Wisconsin and the United States for the period 2001 through December 2005.
The information below reflects revisions, corrections, and new inputs from the 2000 census, including the application of the
changes to the prior years shown. For further information on the changes, please contact the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics,
or visit their website at http://www.bls.gov.

ANNUAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATES

Milwaukee
City of - Waukesha State of

Year Milwaukee Metropolitan Area Wisconsin United States
2005 7.3% 5.0% 4.7% 5.1%
2004 7.7 5.4 4.9 5.5

2003 8.7 6.1 5.6 6.0

2002 8.3 5.8 5.3 5.8

2001 6.7 4.6 4.4 4.7

Source: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.

RECENT MONTHLY UNEMPLOYMENT RATES
(Not Seasonally Adjusted)

Milwaukee
City of - Waukesha State of
Month Milwaukee Metropolitan Area Wisconsin United States
August 2006 7.1% 4.8% 4.2% 4.4%

Source: U.S. department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.

The City’s economic structure reveals a diversified economy with strong service and manufacturing sectors. The service
sector (service, finance, insurance, real estate and retail trade) employs over 69 percent of the workforce. Manufacturing
firms employ 17 percent of the work force. The area is not dominated by any large employers. Less than two percent of the
manufacturers have employment levels greater than 500. Less than one percent of the employers in finance, insurance and
services have more than 500 employees.
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County of Milwaukee
Establishments and Employment by Industry Group
2004 - 3rd Quarter

NAICS Description

Utilities

Construction

Manufacturing

Wholesale Trade

Retail Trade

Transportation And Warehousing
Finance And Insurance

Real Estate And Rental And Leasing
Professional And Technical Services
Management Of Companies And Enterprises
Administrative And Waste Services
Educational Services

Health Care And Social Assistance
Arts, Entertainment, And Recreation
Accommodation And Food Services
Other Services, Ex. Public Admin
Public Administration

Not Classified

Total

All Government
Private Sector

Source: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development
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Total
Number of Average
Establishments  Employment
34 1,731
1,423 13,188
1,316 63,060
1,576 19,390
2,550 46,167
698 22,082
1,310 30,750
863 7,365
2,405 23,007
202 13,634
1,202 38,223
523 32,059
2,665 81,469
262 8,673
1,735 35,922
2,678 15,781
107 22,825
353 12,303
21,902 487,629
409 51,656
21,493 435,973



TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS WITH 2005 ASSESSED VALUATIONS

US Bank $222,499,980
Northwestern Mutual Life Ins. 165,460,560
Marcus Corp/Milw City Center/Pfister 99,579,010
NNN 411 East Wisconsin LLC 91,034,000
Towne Realty 87,902,400
Metropolitan Associates 87,804,700
M & | Marshall & llsley Bank/Metavante Corp 77,442,920
Miller Brewing 66,293,140
100 E. Wisconsin Ave Joint Venture 58,183,120
Great Lakes REIT/GLR Milw Center 56,420,380

Source:  City of Milwaukee, Assessor’s Office February 2006.

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)
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DEBT STRUCTURE

The City of Milwaukee has never defaulted in the payment of the principal or interest on its debt obligations, nor has the City
issued any refunding securities for the purpose of preventing default in principal or interest on its debt obligations.

LEGAL DEBT LIMITATIONS

Section 67.03 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as supplemented and amended, limits direct general obligation borrowing by the
City to an amount equivalent to five percent of the equalized valuation of taxable property within the City. Section 119.49 of
the Wisconsin Statutes, as supplemented and amended, further authorizes referendum approved bonding in an additional
amount equivalent to two percent of the equalized taxable property within the City for school capital purposes. Such debt
margins, as of November 1, 2006, are calculated upon the 2006 City equalized valuation for 2006 purposes of
$30,226,985,500. After issuance of the Offered Obligations, the available five percent debt margin for City borrowing will
be $693,784,275 or 45.9% ($759,784,275 or 50.3% if the $66 million Cash Flow Notes, issued in April 2006 are excluded)
remaining for future debt issuance. The available two percent debt margin for school purpose borrowing is $604,539,710, or
97.6% remaining for future debt issuance.

DEBT MARGIN
(Includes the Offered Obligations)

Equalized Value of Taxable Property in the City $30,226,985,500

Legal Debt Limitation for City Borrowing

5% of Equalized Value $1,511,349,275
General Obligation Debt Outstanding subject to 5% Limit
as of 12/01/06 $798,955,000
Plus: GO Notes 25,205,000
Plus: GO Bonds 19,105,000
Plus: GO BANs 22,100,000
Less: GO debt to be refunded (11,785,000)
Less: Provision for current year maturities (6,390,000)
Net General Obligation Debt Outstanding subject to the 5% Limit $847,190,000
as of 12/01/06
Total Debt Margin for City Borrowing (in Dollars) $664,159,275
(As a percentage) 43.9%
(As a percentage excluding $66 million of Cash Flow Notes issued in April 2006) 48.3%

Legal Debt Limitation for School Purpose Borrowing

2% of Equalized Value $604,539,710
General Obligation Debt Outstanding subject to 2% Limit
as of 12/01/06 14,774,150
Less: Provision for current year maturities 0
Net General Obligation Debt Outstanding subject to the 5% Limit $14,774,150
as of 12/01/06
Total Debt Margin for School Purpose Borrowing (in Dollars) $589,765,560
(As a percentage) 97.6%
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DEBT REFUNDED
The City has issued the following series of general obligation refunding bonds that have outstanding escrow amounts:

$26,035,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series of 2001-A, dated July 1, 2001, for the purpose of refunding
additional portions of four general obligation bond issues, with a final escrow payment in 2009, and Associated Trust
Company, National Association as escrow trustee.

$159,985,000, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series of 2002-A, dated October 15, 2002, for the purpose of
refunding portions of seventeen general obligation issues, with a final escrow payment in 2011, and Bank of New
York as escrow trustee.

$45,240,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 A5, dated June 7, 2005, for the purpose of refunding

portions of seven general obligation issues, with a final escrow payment in 2012, with Associated Trust Company,
National Association as escrow trustee.

None of the refunded debt is reflected in the “Debt Margin” presentation above.

ANALYSIS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT
OUTSTANDING AS OF DECEMBER 1, 2006

Schools (5% City Borrowing) $105,906,051
Schools (2% School Purpose Borrowing) 14,774,150
Public Buildings 143,048,389
Tax Increment Districts 121,309,307
Streets 87,395,905
Sewers 66,056,760
Police 44,240,210
Finance Real & Personal Property Tax Rec 27,069,812
Water 23,257,062
Blight Elimination/Urban Renewal 20,392,571
Bridges 19,213,946
Local Improvement Projects/Special Ass 18,668,842
Fire 15,881,521
Parking 12,459,917
Library 8,426,107
Playground/Rec Facilities 8,017,471
FMIS Replacement 5,143,000
Harbor 4,144,405
Municipal Expenses 1,500,000
Grant & Aid Improvements City Share 463,335
Economic Development 153,942
Industrial Land Bank 107,922
Milwaukee Exposition and Conv Center 49,959
Resource Recovery 35,079
Lakefront Development 13,487
Cash Flow Notes 66,000,000
Total 813,729,150
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GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The following indicates the annual requirements of principal and interest on the general obligation debt of the City.

Total G.O. Debt Total

Service as of Series 2006 N9, B10, and S11 Requirements

1/1/2007 @ N9 & B10 Si11 Interest After Issuance
2007 $123,840,923 $1,347,998 $125,188,921
2008 110,565,322 $1,440,000 $22,100,000 2,880,275 136,985,598
2009 97,469,465 2,410,000 — 1,955,913 101,835,377
2010 89,634,966 2,445,000 — 1,855,778 93,935,744
2011 80,898,476 3,140,000 — 1,738,625 85,777,101
2012 73,096,253 2,945,000 — 1,609,319 77,650,571
2013 65,814,896 3,395,000 — 1,474,594 70,684,490
2014 60,921,566 3,240,000 — 1,333,600 65,495,166
2015 54,245,173 3,070,000 — 1,188,000 58,503,173
2016 48,445,671 3,120,000 — 1,033,250 52,598,921
2017 40,961,696 3,185,000 — 875,625 45,022,321
2018 34,754,358 2,595,000 — 731,125 38,080,483
2019 28,076,488 2,665,000 — 599,625 31,341,113
2020 23,358,092 2,740,000 — 464,500 26,562,592
2021 22,647,734 2,815,000 — 325,625 25,788,359
2022 15,610,337 2,900,000 — 182,750 18,693,087
2023 12,033,417 2,205,000 — 55,125 14,293,542
2024 5,695,630 — — — 5,695,630
2025 5,098,361 — — — 5,098,361
2026 — — — — —
2027 — — — — —

$993,168,824 $44,310,000 $22,100,000 $19,651,727 $1,079,230,551

@ Excludes $66,000,000 of GO Cash Flow Notes that mature on 4/5/2007 that will be provided for prior to 12/31/2006, and debt to be refunded.
Assumes the maximum interest rate of 12.0% on $25,000,000 of variable rate debt (the tax levy requirement).



TRENDS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT

The following table indicates the general obligation debt of the City outstanding on December 31% of the year shown.

Debt Service Fund Balance )

Allocated

General Obligation To Specific Debt Less Debt
Dec. 31 Debt Outstanding® Issues® Unallocated® Service Fund Balance
2000 $605,239,921 $9,623,007 $20,812,993 $574,803,921
2001 643,382,647 13,391,189 28,745,811 601,245,647
2002® 659,548,890 14,526,317 3,021,809 642,000,763
2003® 660,081,448 22,503,385 12,192,196 625,385,866
2004® 672,642,303 23,707,300 10,625,595 638,259,408
2005® 710,409,475 21,981,065 11,294,554 677,133,856

(1) The allocation of the Debt Service Fund balances to specific issues is based upon the debt service due for Tax Incremental Districts,
Parking, Special Assessment, Water and Delinquent Tax borrowings as a portion of total debt service. (For further information
regarding debt service due for Tax Increment Districts, please see “TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT FINANCING.”)

(2) Includes amounts borrowed for Tax Incremental District Program, Parking Program, financing of special assessments, delinquent
taxes and water purposes. See “TRENDS OF SELF SUSTAINING GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT” on the following page for
additional information.

(3) From Provision for Future Maturities - Principal and Interest.

(4) From Debt Service Fund Revenues.

(5) Beginning with 2002, the portion of the Debt Service Fund needed to pay interest on certain self supporting debt has been excluded

from the balance.
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Date
12/31/2000
12/31/2001
12/31/2002
12/31/2003
12/31/2004
12/31/2005

TRENDS OF SELF-SUSTAINING GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT
Self-Sustaining General Obligation Debt!)

General Obligation

Debt Less Debt TID Parking Special Delinquent
Service Balance @ Program® Program Assessments® Taxes® Water

$584,426,928 $66,078,454 $26,981,616 $26,299,555 $21,225,000 $52,611,050
614,636,836 85,095,889 25,557,046 23,882,153 22,430,000 47,857,943
656,527,080 92,727,110 22,588,922 21,291,451 22,645,000 42,488,920
647,889,251 88,436,381 19,635,246 24,837,384 24,190,000 37,808,589
661,966,708 98,051,013 16,612,840 22,824,289 26,260,000 32,800,701
699,114,921 118,997,028 13,952,627 20,427,697 26,323,406 27,949,288

Total Self
Sustaining
_Debt

$193,195,675
204,823,031
201,741,403
194,907,600
196,548,843
207,650,046

Net General Obligation
Debt Less Self-
Sustaining Debt®-
$391,231,253
409,813,805
454,785,677
452,981,651
465,417,865
491,464,875

(1)  The City defines “Self-Sustaining General Obligation Debt” to include any general obligation debt previously issued whose debt service requirements is currently met with current
non-Citywide property tax revenues.

(2)  Unallocated portion only. Allocated Debt Service Fund Balance relates to “Self-Sustaining” Debt categories detailed above.

(3) See “TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT FINANCING” herein for additional information.

(4) The Public Debt Commission, as one of its statutory mandates, oversees the portion of the Public Debt Amortization Fund used annually to prepay outstanding debt. The
Commissioners of the Public Debt have reserved a portion of this Fund sufficient to make principal and interest payments for all outstanding special assessments purpose debt service

to maturity.

(5) Debt service on securities used to fund delinquent tax is offset completely by remitted delinquent tax payments.
(6) General Obligation Debt less unallocated Debt Service Balance and less Self-Sustaining Debt on a per capita basis is as follows:

Date Debt Per Capita
12/31/2001 $688.17
12/31/2002 763.12
12/31/2003 762.70
12/31/2004 783.64

12/31/2005 829.11
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Date
12/31/2001
12/31/2002
12/31/2003
12/31/2004
12/31/2005

Population®

595,508
595,958
595,245
593,920
592,765

Net Equalized
Valuation®

$19,453,830,200

20,298,387,000
21,730,754,000
23,491,773,700
26,256,713,800

RATIO OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT
To Equalized And Assessed Values And To Per Capita
And Per Capita Incomes

Assessed
Valuation

$17,699,784,394

19,866,255,215
21,009,517,241
22,772,419,500
25,222,149,174

Net
General
Obligation
Dth@)
$601,245,647
642,000,763
625,385,866
638,259,408
677,133,856

Net General Net Net Net G.O.
Obligation General Obligation ~ General Obligation Per Debt
Debt/Equalized Debt/Assessed Debt Per Capita Per Capita/
Valuation® Valuation Capita® Income  Per Capita Income
3.09% 3.40% $1,009.63 $14,147 7.14%
3.16 3.23 1,077.26 13,420 8.03
2.88 2.98 1,050.64 13,680 7.68
2.72 2.80 1,074.66 13,578 8.41
2.58 2.68 1,142.33 N/A N/A

1) The population figures are derived through estimates from the Wisconsin Department of Revenue population used in the distribution of State Shared Revenues.

) Per Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Bureau of Property and Utility Tax.

3) See - “TRENDS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT” herein.

(4) The Public Debt Amortization Fund may be used to acquire debt prior to maturity. Assuming the year-end unsegregated fund balance had been applied in this manner to debt in 2000
through 2004, the following results would have occurred:

Date
12/31/2001
12/31/2002
12/31/2003
12/31/2004
12/31/2005

Debt Percentage
Of Equalized
Value

2.86%
2.94
2.67
2.52
241

Direct
Debt Per

Capita
$936.33
1,002.87

976.44
998.71
1,066.08



CoOMPUTATION OF NET DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
DECEMBER 1, 2006

Debt Outstanding

As of December 1, 2006 Approximate Milwaukee's
(Net of 2006 Percentage Share of Debt
Governmental Unit Principal Payments) Applicable As of December 1, 2006
City of Milwaukee @ $741,339,150 100.00% $741,339,150
Area Board of Vocational, Technical
and Adult Education, District No. 9 63,035,000 43.61 27,489,564
County of Milwaukee 462,057,472 47.52 219,569,711
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District @ 728,192,031 48.55 353,537,231
TOTAL NET DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $1,994,623,653 $1,341,935,655

W Includes $126,402,556 general obligation debt outstanding, which financed Milwaukee Public Schools improvements. Excludes 2006
maturities and the $66 million Cash Flow Notes issued in April 2006.

@ Includes approximately $458,022,031 of low interest loans from the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund, supported by the full faith
and credit of the District.

FUTURE FINANCING

Prior to the issuance of the Offered Obligations, the City has $340,071,013 authorized unissued general obligation debt, for
various corporate and capital improvement purposes, which can be issued at any time. Approximately $100 million of the
authorized debt will be allowed to expire at the end of 2006. The City is in the process of borrowing up to $50 million of the
authorized unissued debt from the State’s Clean Water Fund program, plus another $10 million to permanently finance the
Series 2006 S11 and other BANSs. The City also has $118 million of authorized unissued revenue anticipation borrowing
which will expire at the end of 2006.

The 2007 Budget authorizes $286,636,140 of additional general obligation debt for various corporate and capital
improvement purposes, and $300,000,000 of general obligation and/or revenue anticipation borrowing for cash flow
purposes.

See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION — CITY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN” herein for information on potential
future capital needs.

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)
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REVENUE BONDING

The City and City agencies have issued revenue bonds directly and indirectly. Entities which have issued revenue bonds
include the Redevelopment Authority and the Housing Authority. Collectively, the bond programs of the Housing and
Redevelopment Authorities complement the City financed economic development projects and foster the same development
objectives.

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 —In 1998, the City and the State of Wisconsin entered into a loan agreement
under the State of Wisconsin Safe Drinking Water Loan Program. Subsidized loans are available for certain projects, are
secured by revenues of the Milwaukee Water Works, and are repayable over a period of 20 years. As of December 31, 2004,
the outstanding balance was $13,745,000.

Sewerage System Revenue Bonds — In 2001, the City created the Sewerage System with the issuance of $29,095,000 of
Sewerage System Revenue Bonds. As of December 31, 2005, total outstanding Sewerage System Revenue Bonds was
$58,555,000 with a final maturity in 2023.

Industrial Revenue Bonding Program — The City has established guidelines relating to its Industrial Revenue Bonding
Program. These guidelines establish criteria for IRB financing. The guidelines delineate that the primary goals of this
program are additional tax base, additional jobs or both.

Industrial land, buildings, and machinery and equipment used in the manufacturing process and pollution abatement
equipment of new or expanding industries are eligible projects. Since the first IRB issue in 1973, the City has closed 125
issues amounting to approximately $265 million. The City has no responsibility to either secure or redeem IRB debt, and
thus neither guarantees nor lends its own credit to these obligations.

Housing Authority of the City of Milwaukee — Most of the Housing Authority bonds and notes are secured by a lien on all
revenues of the Housing Authority Low Income Housing Program. The Housing Authority has also issued debt for
“stand-alone” projects. The Housing Authority bonds and notes are not a general obligation of the City nor are they
guaranteed by the City. As such, they are not backed by the general credit or taxing powers of the City.

Between the period 1983 and December 1, 2005 the Housing Authority issued revenue bonds of approximately $149 million
of which approximately $12 million are still outstanding.

Redevelopment Authority of the City of Milwaukee — The Redevelopment Authority of the City (the “Redevelopment
Authority” or the “Authority”) is a public body corporate and politic formed in 1958 by action of the Common Council of the
City pursuant to the Section 66.1333 (formerly Section 66.431) of the Wisconsin Statutes, as supplemented and amended
(“Redevelopment Authority Act”).

The Authority has as its purpose the carrying out of blight elimination, slum clearance and urban renewal programs and
projects as set forth in the Redevelopment Authority Act, and is authorized under the Redevelopment Authority Act to issue
revenue bonds for the financing of such programs and projects and to enter into revenue agreements to provide revenues for
the payment of such revenue bonds.

Since its creation, the Authority has provided for the acquisition and improvement of a variety of industrial, commercial,
housing and other revenue-producing projects, and, in some instances, has entered into revenue agreements for the financing
thereof, pursuant to authorization contained in the Redevelopment Authority Act. In connection with the financing of a
number of such projects, the Authority has issued revenue bonds under a number of authorizing resolutions and indentures,
each of which contained separate terms and conditions relating to the respective issues of revenue bonds. In each instance,
the bonds issued constitute limited obligations of the Authority, and do not constitute an indebtedness of the City or a charge
against the City’s general credit or taxing power. As of December 31, 2005, the Authority has sold 99 separate issues in the
total principal amount of approximately $935 million. As December 31, 2005 there remained approximately $494 million
outstanding.
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The majority of these issues are supported solely by the revenues of the various projects. While in each instance, the bonds
issued constitute limited obligations of the Authority, and do not constitute an indebtedness of the City or a charge against the
City’s general credit or taxing power; there are certain issues which involve contingent liabilities of the Authority and/or the
City.

As of December 31, 2005, the Authority had outstanding: one bond issue with $1,165,000 outstanding secured by a lease
with the City; two bond issues with $40,230,000 outstanding that have a Moral Obligation Pledge of the City; and
$171,489,122 in five bond issues for MPS, one secured by a lease, and four secured by loan agreements, with the Milwaukee
Board of School Directors (“MBSD”). These bonds do not constitute general obligations of the City, or of MBSD, and shall
not constitute or give rise to a charge against the City’s, or MBSD'’s, taxing powers. These pledges create only financial
obligations of the City, or MBSD, which are subject to annual appropriation. The loan agreement with MBSD includes a
pledge of certain state aid payable to MBSD.

The Authority has also issued debt payable from tax increment revenues. See “TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT
FINANCING” herein.

Milwaukee Economic Development Corporation — As of December 31, 2005, the Milwaukee Economic Development
Corporation funded loans for 948 small businesses and redevelopment projects utilizing $187 million to leverage a total of
$998 million in investment. 618 loans have been enrolled in the Capital Access Program with covered loan amounts totaling
$22 million.

The Milwaukee Economic Development Corporation had notes and debentures payable under the Small Business
Administration’s Section 503 and 504 loan programs in the amount of $13 million as of December 31, 2005.

TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT FINANCING

Five issues of the Redevelopment Authority and Housing Authority involving over $60 million in bonds have financed
projects located within tax increment districts (“TID”). The City has also financed public improvements and provided grants
to the Redevelopment Authority for redevelopment purposes within such districts through the issuance of its general
obligation bonds. As of March 1, 2006, $117,288,818 general obligation bonds for TID purposes was outstanding. Under
current laws, tax increments received by the City have been calculated based upon the assessed valuation and the applicable
tax levy in the tax increment district. The applicable tax levy includes the public school tax levy rate for Milwaukee Public
Schools.

The Redevelopment Authority of the City has approximately $42 million of debt secured by tax increment revenues. One of
those issues, in the approximate amount of $20 million, has the moral obligation of the City. The remaining debt is owed to
developers of projects within the TID, with no recourse to the City in the event that tax increment revenues are insufficient to
repay the obligations. In 1996, the Wisconsin Legislature passed a property tax relief measure which increased the portion of
statewide school revenues funded by State equalization aid to two-thirds from approximately one-half of all funds’ budgets.
The 2005 Assessed Tax Rate for Milwaukee Public Schools is $8.17 per thousand dollars of assessed value, down from
$15.70 in 1995 (amounts are net of the school state tax credit). As a result, tax increment revenues for certain TIDs received
by the City have been, and are expected to continue to be, reduced, and therefore have the impact of either increasing the time
needed to recover incurred project costs, including future debt service requirements; reducing the funding of active and
proposed TIDs; or may require the City to fund TIDs cash flow deficiencies with other City revenues. In connection with the
change in the school aid formula, the State Legislature extended the allowable life of all TIDs established before October 1,
1995 from a maximum 23 years to a maximum 27 years to accommodate the lower school property tax rate. Pursuant to
2003 Wisconsin Acts 126, 127, 194 and 231 (enacted in February through April 2004), the allowable life of TIDs created
between September 30, 1995 and October 1, 2004 for blight elimination and rehabilitation purposes is 27 years. The
maximum lives for TIDs created after September 30, 2004 is 27 years for blighted and rehabilitation TIDs, and 20 years for
mixed-use TIDs and industrial TIDs (which, for industrial TIDs represents a reduction from 23 years, though the new law
also makes them eligible for a three-year extension). Extensions are available under certain circumstances. In any year in
which total TID debt service requirements for the ensuing year are greater than total tax increments received, the shortfall is
funded by the general property tax levy.

30



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BUDGETING

Each department and agency prepares its own detailed estimate of needs for the ensuing fiscal year which is filed with the
Mayor not later than the second Tuesday in May of each year, at which time the Comptroller submits his statement of
anticipated non-property tax revenues in accordance with City Charter provisions. Under the City Charter, changes to these
non-property tax revenue estimates can be made only by the Comptroller. The Mayor holds hearings on departmental
spending requests during July and August at the times and places the Mayor or Common Council by ordinance directs. The
Mayor submits a proposed budget to the Common Council on or before September 28th of each year. This budget includes
the Comptroller’s anticipated non-property tax revenues. Subsequent to receipt of the budget by the Common Council, its
Committee on Finance and Personnel reviews the Mayor’s proposed expenditure budget. The Mayor and Common Council
hold a public hearing on the entire budget no later than the 30th day of October. The Common Council subsequently adopts
a property tax levy, but cannot change the Comptroller’s anticipated revenues budget. The final budget must be adopted by
the 14th of November. The City is under no State or local levy limit strictures with respect to its General, Capital or Debt
Service Funds.

CiTYy CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

The City’s 2004-2009 Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) describes planned capital improvement projects and programs,
together with proposed financing. School purpose improvements are financed by the City for the Milwaukee Public Schools,
but are not included in the CIP.

The six-year City CIP municipal spending plan totals $1,153 million. About $986 million or 85 percent of planned municipal
and school purpose spending is intended to preserve the City’s existing infrastructure facilities (streets, sewers, alleys,
bridges, etc.). The remaining 15 percent is for expansion purposes. In addition, the City has historically provided $12
million per year towards capital improvements for the Milwaukee Public Schools (school purpose borrowing) for a six-year
total CIP of $1,225 million.

Surface transportation accounts for approximately 26% of the CIP, or about $294 million. 26% ($300 million) is planned for
environmental projects including sewer and water improvements plus forestry and subsurface remediation projects. $141
million of capital spending (12%) is planned for economic development projects. These projects are mainly Tax Incremental
District related or Port of Milwaukee capital improvements. The remaining 36 percent ($418 million) is planned for general
governmental, health & safety, grant and aid, culture and recreation purposes. All $12 million of annual school spending is
dedicated to deferred maintenance, repairs and remodeling projects, including $2 million per year of Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility projects.

The portion of the $1,153 million six-year CIP to be financed by the property tax levy totals about $539 million (47%). This
in turn is composed of direct tax levy funding of $104 million (9%) and tax levy supported debt financing of $435 million
(38%). Cash revenues including Federal and State grants, developer financing and other sources, total $235 million (20%) of
planned CIP spending. An additional $78 million (7%) is to be financed by City debt to be repaid with tax increment and
other revenues. The remaining $301 million (26%) of the municipal purpose CIP is to be financed by self-supported debt
issued for special assessments, water, sewer and parking purposes. Of the $12 million per year of school purpose borrowing,
$10 million is typically tax levy supported debt, and $2 million is ADA reimbursable debt.

The Adopted 2006 Capital Improvements Budget totals $253 million compared to a 2005 Budget of $193 million. Major

categories include $124 million of public works projects (streets, buildings, etc.), $44 million of water and sewer projects,
$66 million of economic development projects, and $11 million for schools.
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Taxes

Property Tax - General
Provision for Empl Retirement
Common Council Contingent
Fund

Total Taxes

Revenues

Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Service
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous Revenues
Fringe benefits
Parking
Water Works
Sewer Maintenance Fund
Retained Earnings
Sinking Fund
Special Assessments
Capital Revenue

Total Revenues

Tax Stabilization

Transfer from Reserves

Sale of Bonds and Notes

Bonds and Notes
Grand Total

ADOPTED BUDGET - COMBINED REVENUES - 2006

Special Debt Capital

General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Total
$98,808,600 $1,000,000 $58,725,236 $8,629,053 — $167,162,889
40,387,713 — — — — 40,387,713
5,500,000 — — — — 5,500,000
$144,696,313 $1,000,000 $58,725,236 $8,629,053 $0 $213,050,602
$14,061,000 — — — — $14,061,000
11,018,822 — — — — 11,018,822
272,233,000 $79,020,376 — — — 351,253,376
96,898,907 — — — — 96,898,907
5,206,000 — — — — 5,206,000
8,160,799 9,000,000 — — — 17,160,799
17,250,000 — — — — 17,250,000
15,200,000 — $4,397,241 — $17,435,616 37,032,857
— — 6,463,794 — 69,637,939 76,101,733
4,610,000 — 7,000,000 — 23,059,298 34,669,298
— — — — 42,179,409 42,179,409
— — 48,955,556 — — 48,955,556
— 10,534,254 — $2,804,799 — 13,339,053
— — — 12,900,000 — 12,900,000
$444,638,528 $98,554,630 $66,816,591 $15,704,799 $152,312,262 $778,026,810
$16,328,000 — — — — $16,328,000
— — — $140,530,072 $25,580,000 166,110,072
$605,662,841 $99,554,630 $125,541,827 $164,863,924 $177,892,262 $1,173,515,484

@ Includes employer and employee pension contributions and City employers' share of FICA.
@ For budgeting purposes, Fringe Benefits are used as an offset against expenditures since these costs are budgeted twice, both as a lump sum and as individual departmental expenditures.
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Administration, Dept of

Assessor's Office

City Attorney

City Treasurer

Common Council - Clerk

Municipal Court

Comptroller

Dept of City Development

Election Commission

Employee Relations, Dept of

Fire Department

Health Department

Library Board

Mayor's Office

Neighborhood Services

Police Department

Port of Milwaukee

DPW-Administration

DPW:-Infrastructure

DPW-Operations

Water Works

Sewer Maintenance Fund

Special Purpose Accounts

Pension Funds

Debt Service - City

Debt Service - Schools

Contingency

Delinquent Tax Fund

Parking

Grant & Aid Fund

Special Capital Projects

Economic Development

Fringe Benefit Offset
Grand Total

ADOPTED BUDGET — COMBINED APPROPRIATIONS — 2006

Special Debt Capital

General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Total
$7,723,828 — — $521,000 — $8,244,828
4,654,643 — — — — 4,654,643
6,833,434 — — — — 6,833,434
2,885,733 — — — — 2,885,733
7,829,176 — — 175,000 — 8,004,179
3,370,945 — — — — 3,370,945
6,428,104 — — — — 6,428,104
3,535,712 — — 65,550,000 — 69,085,712
1,815,237 — — — — 1,815,237
5,603,394 — — — — 5,603,394
88,705,238 — — 3,381,000 — 92,086,238
13,808,572 — — 550,000 — 14,358,572
23,952,284 — — 1,060,000 — 25,012,284
1,165,922 — — — — 1,165,922
14,125,791 — — — — 14,125,791
206,999,935 — — 1,179,000 — 208,178,935
3,882,471 — — 1,025,000 — 4,907,471
4,811,231 — — 235,000 — 5,046,231
23,131,188 — — 27,514,699 — 50,645,887
75,172,017 — — 55,258,225 — 130,430,242
— — $6,463,794 — $100,907,180 107,370,974
4,610,000 — 7,000,000 — 47,310,730 58,920,730
143,859,472 — — — — 143,859,472
63,713,789 — — — — 63,713,789
— — 91,318,950 — — 91,318,950
— — 16,361,842 — — 16,361,842
5,500,000 — — — — 5,500,000
— $19,105,000 — — — 19,105,000
— — 4,397,241 — 29,674,352 34,071,593
— 79,020,376 — — — 79,020,376
— — — 8,415,000 — 8,415,000
— 10,534,254 — — — 10,534,254
(118,455,278) — — — — (118,455,278)
$605,662,841 $99,554,630 $125,541,827 $164,863,924 $177,892,262 $1,173,515,484

WFor budgeting purposes, Fringe Benefits are used as an offset against expenditures since these costs are budgeted twice, both as a lump sum and as individual departmental expenditures



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2001 THROUGH 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Other

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES
Tax Stabilization Fund Withdrawals
Other Financing Sources and Equity
Transfers (Net)

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES TAX

STABILIZATION FUND WITHDRAWALS
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Expenditures:
General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
Fund Balance - January 1 (excludes reserved
for use during the year)
Net Residual Equity Transfers
Fund Balance - December 31

Fund Balance Components:

Reserved for Encumbrances & Carryovers
Reserved for Inventory

Reserved for Mortgage Trust

Reserved for Environmental Remediation
Reserved for Next Year's Budget
Reserved for Subsequent Years' Budget!®)

TOTAL FUND BALANCE®Y

2001
$118,804
12,688
10,485
278,969
54,594
4,408
12,408
$492,356

5,500

24,324

$522,180

162,628
209,521
87,453
11,237
16,948
1,922
$495,709
$26,471
40,465

1,908
$68,844

$22,460
5,678
281

303
11,000
29,122

$68,844

2002
$114,096
2,944
10,814
283,068
57,749
5,210
8,706
$482,587

11,000

29,681

$523,268

158,645
211,163
88,094
10,552
18,791
7,857
$495,102
$28,166
57,844

0
$86,010

9,300
33,745

$86,010

2003
$126,749
4,318
10,883
284,565
55,714
6,115
1,814
$496,158

9,300

32,791

$538,249

165,270
239,698
86,335
10,677
17,165
3,833
$522,978
$15,271
76,710

0
$91,981

16,870
36,342

$91,981

2004
$129,120
3,563
11,530
273,865
60,825
5,647
8,108
$492,658

16,870

34,913

$544.441

179,542
231,371
89,562
10,724
17,822
3495
$532,516
$11,925
75,111

0
$87,036

16,621
33,858

$87,036

2005
$135,610
3,709
13,374
272,875
63,410
5,893
12,179
$507,050

16,621

39,444

$563,115

180,590
248,366
89,180
10,656
16,744
2,767
$548,303
$14,812
70,415

0
$85,227

$16,382
5,095
297

303
16,328
46,822

$85,227

@ In 2003, balances presented on a Budget Basis do not match balances presented on a Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) basis due to borrowing for certain expenditures authorized in the current fiscal year but not
completed until the subsequent fiscal year. Budget Basis recognizes the revenues and expenditures in the same fiscal
year, whereas GAAP does not recognize the revenues until the year the borrowing actually occurs. On a GAAP basis, the
balances for “Reserve for Subsequent Years’ Budget” and “Total Fund Balance” in 2000 were $17,909 and $38,894,
respectively, and in 2003 were $34,342, and $89,981, respectively.
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Real Property

Residential

Industrial (Manufacturing)
Mercantile (Commercial)
Total Real Property
Personal Property

Total Assessed Valuations

Equalized Valuation as determined by the
State Department of Taxation is the basis
used in computing the 7% statutory debt
limitation of the City of Milwaukee

Ratio of Assessed to Equalized Valuation

CiTY OF MILWAUKEE

ASSESSED AND EQUALIZED VALUATIONS

Year 2002 For
2003 Purposes

Year 2003 For
2004 Purposes

Year 2004 For
2005 Purposes

Year 2005 For
2006 Purposes

Year 2006 For
2007 Purposes

$12,027,394,755 $12,938,633,380 $14,301,661,916 $16,093,549,640 $18,211,503,605
765,130,300 729,858,200 733,599,500 721,966,100 740,265,100
6,176,332,500 6,493,804,441 6,903,490,064 7,566,086,684 8,498,282,646
$18,968,857,555 $20,162,296,021 $21,938,751,480 $24,381,602,424 $27,450,051,351
897,397,660 847,221,220 833,668,020 830,118,862 904,900,490
$19,866,255,215 $21,009,517,241 $22,772,419,500 $25,211,721,286 $28,354,951,841
$20,275,936,700 $21,730,754,000 $23,491,773,700 $26,256,713,800 $30,226,985,500
98.00% 96.68% 96.94% 94.58% 94.05%



CiTY OF MILWAUKEE

ASSESSED TAX RATES
(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Unit of Government
City Government™® $10.49 $10.87 $10.15 $9.73 $9.19
Milwaukee Public Schools 9.87 10.12 9.34 8.96 9.40
Milwaukee County 5.66 6.13 5.40 5.15 491
Milwaukee Area Technical College 2.00 2.23 2.05 2.04 2.00
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
District 1.68 1.87 1.74 1.64 1.59
Gross Tax Rate Per $1,000 $29.70 $31.22 $28.68 $27.52 $27.09
Less: State Tax Credit 1.69 1.66 1.43 1.35 1.23
Net Tax Rate $28.01 $29.56 $27.25 $26.17 $25.86

@ Includes School Debt Service ($0.59 in 2005).

CITY OF MILWAUKEE

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
($ Amounts in Thousands)

Total Tax  Current Tax Collections  Delinquent Tax Total Tax Collections Outstanding
Levy @ Amount %ofLevy  Collections @ Amount  %oflLevy  Delinguent Taxes ©
2001 $368,371  $355,575 96.53% $14,805 $370,380 100.55% $22,043
2002 382,873 369,125 96.41% 13,926 383,051 100.05% 21,865
2003 398,220 383,064 96.19% 12,401 395,465 99.31% 24,620
2004 404,892 390,930 96.55% 14,676 405,606 100.18% 23,905
2005 436,427 421,686 96.62% 13,960 435,646 99.82% 24,686

@ Includes City and Milwaukee Public Schools levies, adjusted for special assessments placed on tax roll, as well as County delinquent
taxes purchased from the County and included in tax levy collections.

@ Includes amounts from any prior year collected in that year.

® Includes current and prior delinguent taxes.
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COLLECTION PROCEDURES

If no payment of property taxes is received in January, the taxes become delinquent as of February 1. If the taxes are not paid
when due under the 10-month installment plan, they become delinquent for legal purposes on November 15.

A letter is mailed to the taxpayer shortly after February 1st, telling of the delinquency and suggesting partial payments if full
payment cannot be made. As directed by State of Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 74, interest at the rate of 1 percent per month
is charged from the preceding January 1st. Periodic follow-up letters continue to be mailed.

Taxpayers are given every opportunity to pay their delinquent taxes and satisfactory agreements are arranged to bring this
about. If a property owner continues to remain delinquent and the Treasurer’s Office is unable to reach an arrangement by
which the owner will pay the taxes, the Treasurer’s Office starts foreclosure proceedings. The City enforces its own
delinquent tax collections.

Taxes are foreclosed under State of Wisconsin Statutes Section 75.521, which permits a legal action to be commenced one
year from the date of delinquency. An exception to this provision is that legal action on owner occupied dwellings may be
deferred up to two years if authorized by Common Council action.

The rate of current tax collections continues at this historically high level. Current collections for 2005 were approximately
96.6 percent of the total tax levied.

INSURANCE
The City has property insurance with the State of Wisconsin Local Government Property Insurance Fund. This insurance is
subject to a $25,000 deductible. The City is uninsured for liability. Under Wisconsin law, the City’s exposure in tort liability
is limited to $50,000 in non-automobile cases and $250,000 in automobile cases. The City does carry a wharfinger’s liability

policy on its port with coverage up to $10 million and a deductible of $500,000. The City follows a policy of requiring
contract service providers to provide the City with indemnification and insurance as may be deemed appropriate by the City.

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)
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PENSION SYSTEM

EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Employees’ Retirement System (“System”) of the City is established pursuant to Section 36 of the Milwaukee City
Charter.

Membership in the System consists of specified classes of part-time and all full-time municipal employees including elected
officials. Persons employed as teachers are specifically excluded from membership. Membership in the System totals
approximately 12,200 active and 3,550 vested, inactive members at December 31, 2004. There were approximately 10,700
retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits as of December 31, 2004.

Funding of the System, a defined benefit plan, is derived from employee and employer contributions. Current employee
contributions to the System are based on a percentage of compensation as follows:

General Municipal® 5.5%
Elected Officials 7.0%
Police 7.0%
Fire 7.0%

@ Including non-certified School Board, Milwaukee Area Technical College, and all Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
District and Wisconsin Center employees.

The City pays the employee’s share of the pension contributions as well as the employer’s share of pension contributions
which are actuarially determined based upon normal cost and amortization of past service liability. The actuarial cost method
for determining these items was changed from the “aggregate cost method” to the “projected unit credit method” as of
January 1, 1995.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the latest year for which audited figures are available, required member contributions
totaled $31 million and required employer contributions totaled $46,000. Approximately 73% of these contributions were for
requirements of the City of Milwaukee employees. The original cost of fund investments totaled $3.275 billion with a
corresponding market value of $4.345 billion or 133% of the original cost at December 31, 2004.

The Milwaukee City Charter requires that an actuarial study of the System be performed at least once every five (5) years for
the purpose of reviewing assumptions. The last actuarial study was completed by Buck Consultants covering experience
from January 1, 1997 to December 31, 2001.

The latest actuarial valuation was as of January 1, 2005. The valuation reveals the System continues to remain actuarially
sound.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 25 Disclosure of “Schedule of Funding Progress”

indicates an Actuarial Value of Assets of $4.113 billion as of January 1, 2005 and an Actuarial Accrued Liability of $3.523
billion as of that date. This results in a Funded Ratio of 116.7%.
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FIREMEN’S ANNUITY AND BENEFIT FUND

The Firemen’s Annuity and Benefit Fund was established in 1923 pursuant to Chapter 423 of the 1923 Laws of Wisconsin.
In 1947, the Firemen’s Annuity and Benefit Fund was closed to new entrants. The final pre-1947 member retired in 1989.

The Principal Mutual Life Insurance Company made a proposal to provide annuities guaranteeing benefit payments to
entrants and widows, exclusive of duty disability benefits, beginning in February 1990 in consideration of a single premium
payment on January 31, 1990, in the amount of $20,419,207. The Retirement Board of the Firemen’s Annuity and Benefit
Fund and the Common council authorized acceptance of the proposal and payment of the required premium on December 19,
1989. The Retirement Board and the Firemen’s Annuity and Benefits Fund ceased to exist. The City will be liable to pay
retirement benefits if the insurance company defaults on its obligations under then policy.

POLICEMEN’S ANNUITY AND BENEFIT FUND
The Policemen’s Annuity and Benefit Fund is established pursuant to section 35 of the Milwaukee City Charter.
Membership in the Policemen’s Annuity and Benefit Fund consists of all Police Department employees whose service
commenced prior to July 29, 1947. At February 15, 2006 there were no active members and approximately 163 retired
members or survivors receiving payment.
Current funding is derived from employer contributions. There is an unfunded past service liability for the Policemen’s
Annuity and Benefit fund at year-end 2004 in the amount of $1,930,535 per the Policemen’s Annuity and Benefit Fund’s
Annual Actuarial Statement dated December 31, 2004.

Assets of the Policemen’s Annuity and Benefit Fund at December 31, 2004, totaled $5,281,524 per Actuary Gucciardi
Benefit Resources report of December 31, 2004.
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BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The information contained in the following paragraphs of this subsection “Book-Entry Only System’” has been extracted from
a document prepared by The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) entitled “SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT
LANGUAGE DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY ISSUANCE.” The City makes no representation as to the completeness or
the accuracy of such information or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information subsequent to the date
hereof.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Offered Obligations. The
Offered Obligations will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership
nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond
certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Offered Obligations, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and
will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
“banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a
“clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing
for over 2.2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market
instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of
DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Income Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets
Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, FICC, and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange,
Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system
is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly
(“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are
on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and

www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Offered Obligations under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive
a credit for the Offered Obligations on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not
receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect
Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Offered
Obligations are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of
Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Offered
Obligations, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Offered Obligations is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Offered Obligations deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. The deposit of Offered Obligations with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC
nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the
Offered Obligations; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Offered
Obligations are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect

Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
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Redemption notices shall be sentto DTC. If less than all of the securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC’s practice
is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Offered Obligations unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an
Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or
voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Offered Obligations are credited on the record date (identified in
a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Offered Obligations will be made to Cede & Co., or such
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’
accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from Issuer or Agent, on payable date in
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be
governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in
bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or Issuer,
subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds,
distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be
the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct
and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Offered Obligations at any time by giving
reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained,
Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities
depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that Issuer
believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

NEITHER THE CITY, THE PAYING AGENT NOR THE UNDERWRITERS WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPANTS, TO INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER WITH
RESPECT TO (1) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY
INDIRECT PARTICIPANT; (2) THE PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT WITH RESPECT TO THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST
ON THE OFFERED OBLIGATIONS; (3) ANY NOTICE WHICH IS PERMITTED OR REQUIRED TO BE GIVEN TO
HOLDERS OF THE OFFERED OBLIGATIONS; (4) ANY CONSENT GIVEN BY DTC OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN
BY DTC AS THE HOLDER OF THE OFFERED OBLIGATIONS; OR (5) THE SELECTION BY DTC, ANY DTC
PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN
THE EVENT OF A PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF OFFERED OBLIGATIONS.

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)
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LEGAL MATTERS

LITIGATION STATEMENT

The City, its boards, officers and employees have been defendants in numerous lawsuits over the years. Experience has
shown that a relatively small number of suits commenced are reduced to judgment. The City of Milwaukee does not carry a
blanket policy of insurance against tort liability. In addition, Wis. Stat. § 893.80 limits the amount recoverable against a
political corporation, its officers, officials or employees for acts done in their official capacity to $50,000 in tort liability for
non-automobile cases and $250,000 in automobile cases.

The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the status of pending or threatened litigation, claims and assessments to which the
office has devoted substantive attention in the form of legal consultation or representation and which individually represent
maximum potential loss exposure in excess of $1 million, existing on November 27, 2006.

U.S. Department of Justice Investigation of Firefighter Selection Procedures (Brotherhood of Firefighters v. Fire and
Police Commission). The City has completed payment of monetary relief under the Supplemental Order of the United
States District Court dated November 30, 2001, under Civil Action Case No. 74-C-480, settling allegations of discrimination
in the entry level hiring examinations for firefighter. One additional priority appointment remains to be made, having been
delayed by the candidate’s military service. Thereafter, the City’s only remaining obligations under the Supplemental Order
will be to settle and adjust claims for the payment of pension expenses associated with the settlement. The pension costs are
unknown. They were originally anticipated to exceed $615,000 and since that estimate is several years old, the current
amount could exceed $1 million.

Alexander, et al v. City of Milwaukee, et al. Seventeen white male lieutenants in the Milwaukee Police Department have
been plaintiffs in this litigation in United States District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin, case number 03-
CV00611. Suit was filed on July 27, 2003. The defendants are the City, the Commissioners on the Board of the Fire and
Police Commission, and former Chief of Police Arthur Jones. The suit claims race and gender discrimination in the
promotions from lieutenant to captain of police. The case was tried in March, 2005, and decided in plaintiffs’ favor. The
jury awarded $2,198,500 in compensatory and punitive damages. In addition, the court awarded $1,540,483 in economic
damages. On August, 29, 2005 the Court entered judgments totaling $3,738,983. On February 3, 2006, the Court awarded
attorney fees and costs to plaintiffs in the sum of $427,701. The total of all damages awards, attorney fees and costs is
$4,167,684. On February 13, 2006, defendants filed a notice of appeal to the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals. The Court
heard oral argument on September 28, 2006.

Ketchman, et al v. City of Milwaukee, et al; and Baur, et al v. City of Milwaukee, et al. These two lawsuits have been
consolidated and are pending before Magistrate Judge Patricia Gorence at the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Wisconsin. The combined suits have eleven plaintiffs who are, or were, white male lieutenants in the Milwaukee
Police Department, alleging the same discrimination in promotions to captain as the plaintiffs in the Alexander suit. The
same defendants are named as in Alexander. Discovery is in progress and no trial date has been set. Defendants have raised
further defenses, such as laches, which may be the subject of motions to dismiss. If the matter proceeds, damages could
exceed one million dollars.

Estate of Justin Fields, et al. v. City of Milwaukee, et al. This case involves a fatal police shooting, which occurred on
March 2, 2003. At bar time on Water Street, an officer observed a car that failed to yield to an emergency vehicle, and that
the vehicle was being driven erratically, as if by a drunk driver. The officer approached the vehicle, and its driver, Mr.
Fields, exchanged words with the officer, refused to turn off his vehicle, and fled the scene. A vehicular pursuit ensued, and
came to a stop on North Martin Luther King Drive, after the Fields vehicle collided with another car. Believing that the
Fields vehicle was unable to move and that its occupants might be injured, the officers approached it. The vehicle then
accelerated toward one of the officers. That officer, believing that his life was in danger, fired his weapon at Mr. Fields. Mr.
Fields died at the scene. The case is in the initial stages of litigation. The City anticipate a full discovery process, dispositive
motions, and ultimately, if motions fail, a trial.

Jenkins v. Bartlett, et al, This case involves a fatal police shooting, which occurred on September 19, 2002. On that date
Officer Bartlett was on routine police patrol duty with his partner. While conducting a standard traffic stop, a subject fled
from the scene. That subject was later identified as the decedent Larry Jenkins. Officer Bartlett pursued Mr. Jenkins on foot
to the intersection of 37" Street and Glendale Avenue. When Officer Bartlett came upon the intersection he observed Mr.
Jenkins entering a vehicle which was stopped at the intersection. It appeared to the officer that Mr. Jenkins was attempting to
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carjack the vehicle in an effort to flee from the officer. As the officer attempted to come to the assistance of the driver of the
vehicle he found himself located to the front of the vehicle. He also observed Mr. Jenkins seated behind the steering wheel.
The vehicle began to move forward at a high rate of speed ultimately striking Officer Bartlett and throwing him onto the
hood. Officer Bartlett feared for his life and fired his service weapon at Mr. Jenkins. Mr. Jenkins died at the scene.
Subsequently the estate filed suit. Discovery has been completed in this case. The defendants’ summary judgment motion
was decided by the court, dismissing all issues except for that involving the reasonableness of the officer’s use of force. The
use of force issue went to a jury trial on April 24, 2006. The jury returned a verdict in favor of the defendant officer on May
8, 2006. Plaintiff appealed. The appellate briefing has been completed, and oral argument is scheduled for December 8,
2006.

Pundsack, et al. v. City of Milwaukee, et al., Case No. 04-C-1207. This case involves a fatal police shooting which occurred
on or about December 23, 2002. Edward Pundsack led police on a chase. An Officer involved in the pursuit emerged from
his vehicle and ordered Mr. Pundsack out of his vehicle. At one point, the Officer perceived that Mr. Pundsack was driving
his vehicle in reverse and that other officers were located to the rear of the Pundsack vehicle directly in its path. Believing
that those fellow officers were in imminent danger of death or great bodily harm the Officer fired his service weapon at Mr.
Pundsack. Mr. Pundsack died at the scene. This case is in the initial stages of litigation. The City anticipates a full
discovery process, dispositive motions and ultimately, if motions fail, a trial.

Milwaukee Riverwalk Investigation USAO File No. 2003v200280. The City and the private property owners in Business
Improvement District No. 15 (“BID-15"), a business improvement district, received an August 6, 2003 communication from
the United States Department of Justice (“DOJ”). That communication indicated that the United States Attorney for the
Eastern District of Wisconsin had opened an investigation of a complaint made to the DOJ. The complaint alleged that the
owners and operators of the Milwaukee Riverwalk are in violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act and the DOJ’s
regulations implementing that Act. The City and BID-15 retained the services of a consultant to assist in the response to the
DOJ’s communication. The consultant developed a set of recommendations that would remedy the alleged ADA violations,
and concluded that many, but not all, of the alleged violations had merit.

The City and BID-15 are concluding settlement negotiations with the U.S. Attorney, and the parties hope to enter into a
settlement agreement resolving the ADA complaint within the next 90 days. Under the settlement agreement, the City and
BID-15 would undertake $1.5 million of Riverwalk upgrades over the next three years. The upgrades will make the
Riverwalk more handicap accessible. The City will initially pay for the entire $1.5 million and then recover back 22% from
special assessment to BID-15 owners over the next 15 years.

Kaye v. City of Milwaukee, et al. Kaye, a real estate developer, brought this case against the City of Milwaukee, its
Redevelopment Authority, other agencies, City and Redevelopment officials and employees under the Racketeer Influenced
Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. 8 1961 et. seq., and the Wisconsin Organized Crime Control Act, Wis. Stat. § 946.80,
et. seq.

Kaye’s complaint alleges he attempted to bid on certain real property then owned by the City and located at 1152-1158 Kane
Place. His bid was not considered, because the property had been “promised” to Ms. Kohler, who was then Vice Chair of the
City Planning Commission. He claims that the City, and specifically the Redevelopment Authority, made special exceptions
to bid, sale, zoning and other requirements for Ms. Kohler due to her status as a public official. Specifically, he alleges that
Ms. Kohler, in her capacity as Vice Chair of the City Planning Commission, agreed with Mr. Fowler, then a Redevelopment
Authority Commissioner, to “swap” the Kane Place property for another parcel of property located at 2951-2965 N.
Humboldt Avenue. As a quid pro quo for Mr. Fowler approving the Redevelopment Authority’s sale of the Kane Street
property to Ms. Kohler, she, through the City Planning Commission, approved the sale of the Humboldt Avenue property to
Alterra Coffee Roasters, Inc., a company in which Mr. Fowler is a principal shareholder.

Kaye further alleges that, around this time same, Alderman D’ Amato, the East Village Association, Inc. (“EVA”), and certain
private citizens, including Ms. Kohler, were seeking enactment of an ordinance that would establish a “Conservation District
Overlay” over a portion of the Third Aldermanic District. The conservation district would limit the types of real estate
development that could occur therein. The conservation district was opposed by the plaintiff and others. As part of their
opposition efforts, Kaye and others became members of the EVA and sought to elect their own slate of directors. He alleges
that Alderman D’Amato, Ms. Kohler, and the then-officers of EVA engaged in a fraudulent scheme to manipulate the EVA
election in order to retain control of the board from opponents of the conservation district. He alleges that the opposition
members were permitted to believe that the election would be conducted by a simple majority vote. At the time of the
election, however, the opposition members were informed for the first time that a new voting method, a variant of cumulative
voting that emphasized voting coalitions, would be used. The existing officers and directors of the EVA, along with
Alderman D’Amato and Ms. Kohler, were able to organize a voting coalition, including by means of e-mail, which plaintiff
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alleges to have been an act of wire fraud. The opposition members, surprised by the change in voting method, could not
organize in time and were unsuccessful in wresting control of the EVA board.

Kaye also alleges that citizens opposing the conservation district placed yard signs expressing that opposition in various
places in the Third Aldermanic District. Plaintiff alleges that Alderman D’Amato (or one of his aides, the complaint conflicts
itself on this point) removed such a sign from the property of Jill Bondar, one of the leaders of the opposition group. Kaye
further alleges that Alderman D’Amato left Ms. Bondar a voice mail in which he implicitly threatened criminal prosecution
for her conduct and that of other members of the opposition group in putting up the yard signs.

According to Kaye, the allegations plead predicate acts of racketeering sufficient to allege that the defendants violated both
RICO, the Racketeer Influenced Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1961 et. seq., and the Wisconsin Organized Crime
Control Act, Wis. Stat. § 946.80, et. seq. Plaintiff asserts claims under 18 U.S.C. §8§ 1962(b), (c) and (d). Section 1962(b)
makes it unlawful for any person to acquire or maintain any interest in or control of any “enterprise” through a “pattern of
racketeering.” Section 1962(c) makes it unlawful to conduct or participate in the affairs of an “enterprise” through a “pattern
of racketeering.” Section 1962(d) makes it unlawful to conspire to violate RICO. The complaint asks for over $5,000,000 in
compensatory and punitive damages.

The attorneys for the City and the other defendants moved to dismiss the complaint for failure to state a claim upon which
relief can be granted, which was granted by the court. Mr. Kaye has appealed that decision to the United States Court of
Appeals for the Seventh Circuit.

Milwaukee Police Supervisors Organization (MPSO) v. City of Milwaukee and the Milwaukee Employes’ Retirement
System (ERS). This case is a clone of an earlier case that was filed and subsequently voluntarily dismissed. That case was
brought by the Milwaukee Police Association (MPA represents police officers; the MPSO represents police supervisors.)
The MPA case alleged that the ERS was prohibited by City Ordinance from spending more than $3 million to purchase and
install a computer information system. The suit alleged that the City was liable to pay any of those expenses in excess of $3
million. It is estimate that the total cost of the ERS information system is approximately $25 million. The dispute in the case
was over the interpretation of a section of the City ordinance that transferred all administrative, operational, and investment
expenses from the City to the ERS. This change was made as a part of a larger settlement of various disputes between the
City and the MPA called the Global Pension Settlement. The MPA voluntarily dismissed the lawsuit earlier this year (2005).
The MPSO has now filed this lawsuit making the same allegations. Another union, the Association of Law Enforcement
Allied Services Personnel (ALEASP) has joined this lawsuit as a plaintiff. Both the City and the ERS view the allegations as
without merit and are vigorously defending the lawsuit.

Frank Jude, Jr., et al. v. City of Milwaukee, et al. On October 24, 2004, Frank Jude attended a party in the city hosted by a
Milwaukee police officer and to which a number of other police officers had been invited. At some point, a number of the
off-duty officers became involved in an altercation with Mr. Jude. Jude claims that he was beaten for no reason and he did
suffer severe injuries. The officers claim that they became involved with Jude only after they suspected that he had stolen a
badge from one of them. They also claim that Jude resisted their efforts to obtain physical control of him. On-duty police
were also called to the scene and Jude claims that they, too, used excessive force on him and failed to stop the use of
excessive force by those off-duty officers who were striking Mr. Jude. In addition to issues concerning the cause of the
altercation, its actual participants, and its course, there is a substantial question of whether the off-duty and on-duty officers
involved in the matter were acting within the scope of their employment. The police chief fired most of the officers involved
in the incident; however, the appeal of two of these terminations remains pending. The county prosecutor charged three of
the off-duty officers with crimes, but in April 2006 two were found not guilty and the jury could not reach a final verdict as
to the third officer. The third officer will be retried by the District Attorney in August 2007. Federal authorities also
reviewed the matter and indicted five of the off-duty officers with federal civil rights crimes on October 19, 2006. The Feds
also entered into plea agreements with one of the on-duty officers and one of the off-duty officers. Both officers agreed to
plead guilty to civil rights violations and to testify against the other officers in the government’s case. The lawsuit in this
matter was filed on October 23, 2006, as well as two other suits filed by Jude’s companions, Katie Brown and Kristin
Antonissen. The City has not yet answered any of the complaints and the Court has granted the City’s request for an
extension of time to file an answer by 12/15/06.

Walgreen Co. v. City of Milwaukee. Walgreen’s seeks a property tax refund for 11 of its stores for the years 2002-2005 in
the cumulative amount of $986,487.00, plus interest. In January, it will add an additional claim for tax year 2006 in the
approximate amount of $250,000. This action is brought under Wis. Stat. § 74.37. The case turns on the proper valuation by
the assessor of certain standard leases that Walgreen’s enters into with the developers of its stores. These leases contain a
premium payment for the prime locations that the developers obtain for the stores. The assessor counts this as part of the fair
market value of the property, while the taxpayer claims it is only an expense of doing business. A Dane County Circuit Court
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ruled in favor of the City of Milwaukee on this identical issue this past summer. That case is now in the Court of Appeals
and its outcome will likely control the outcome of the Milwaukee case, which is still in its discovery stage.

LEGAL OPINIONS

The legal opinions of Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP, Chicago, Illinois, and Hurtado, S.C., Wauwatosa, Wisconsin, Bond
Counsel to the City, will be delivered to the purchasers of the Offered Obligations. Drafts of the legal opinions for the
Offered Obligations are included herein as Appendix B.

BOND INSURANCE
(G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds only)
Bond Insurance Policy

Concurrently with the issuance of the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds, Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Financial Security™)
will issue its Municipal Bond Insurance Policy for the Bonds (the "Policy™). The Policy guarantees the scheduled payment of
principal of and interest on the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds when due as set forth in the form of the Policy included as an
exhibit to this Official Statement.

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New York, California, Connecticut or
Florida insurance law.

Financial Security Assurance Inc.

Financial Security is a New York domiciled financial guaranty insurance company and a wholly owned subsidiary of
Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. ("Holdings™). Holdings is an indirect subsidiary of Dexia, S.A., a publicly held
Belgian corporation, and of Dexia Credit Local, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia, S.A. Dexia, S.A., through its
bank subsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the business of public finance, banking and asset management in France, Belgium
and other European countries. No shareholder of Holdings or Financial Security is liable for the obligations of Financial
Security.

At September 30, 2006, Financial Security's combined policyholders' surplus and contingency reserves were approximately
$2,581,107,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately $1,992,163,000 in accordance with statutory
accounting principles. At September 30, 2006, Financial Security's consolidated shareholder’s equity was approximately
$3,058,987,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately $1,590,538,000 in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

At June 30, 2006, Financial Security's combined policyholders' surplus and contingency reserves were approximately
$2,514,378,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately $1,937,740,000 in accordance with statutory
accounting principles. At June 30, 2006, Financial Security's consolidated shareholder’s equity was approximately
$2,889,984,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately $1,556,639,000 in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The consolidated financial statements of Financial Security included in, or as exhibits to, the annual and quarterly reports
filed after December 31, 2005 by Holdings with the Securities and Exchange Commission are hereby incorporated by
reference into this Official Statement. All financial statements of Financial Security included in, or as exhibits to, documents
filed by Holdings pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 after the date of this
Official Statement and before the termination of the offering of the Bonds shall be deemed incorporated by reference into this
Official Statement. Copies of materials incorporated by reference will be provided upon request to Financial Security
Assurance Inc.: 31 West 52nd Street, New York, New York 10019, Attention: Communications Department (telephone
(212) 826-0100).

The Policy does not protect investors against changes in market value of the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds, which market value
may be impaired as a result of changes in prevailing interest rates, changes in applicable ratings or other causes. Financial
Security makes no representation regarding the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds or the advisability of investing in the G.O. Notes
and G.O. Bonds. Financial Security makes no representation regarding the Official Statement, nor has it participated in the
preparation thereof, except that Financial Security has provided to the Issuer the information presented under this caption for
inclusion in the Official Statement.
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Other than with respect to information concerning Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Financial Security™) contained under
the caption "Bond Insurance™ and Appendix D specimen "Municipal Bond Insurance Policy" herein, none of the information
in this Official Statement has been supplied or verified by Financial Security and Financial Security makes no representation
or warranty, express or implied, as to (i) the accuracy or completeness of such information; (ii) the validity of the G.O. Notes
and G.O. Bonds; or (iii) the tax exempt status of the interest on the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds.

RATINGS

The City has requested ratings on the Offered Obligations from FITCH Ratings, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and from
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group. FITCH Ratings has assigned a rating of “AA+” on the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds and a
rating of “F1+” on the G.O. BANs. Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. has assigned a rating of “Aa2” on the G.O. Notes and
G.0. Bonds and a rating of “MIG 1” on the G.O. BANs. Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group has assigned a rating of “AA” on
the G.0O. Notes and G.O. Bonds and a rating of “SP-1+" on the G.O. BANs.

Additionally, with respect the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds, Fitch Ratings, Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and Standard and
Poor’s Ratings Group have assigned their municipal bond ratings of “AAA”, “Aaa” and “AAA”, respectively, to the G.O.
Notes and G.O. Bonds, with the understanding that upon delivery of the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds, a financial guaranty
insurance policy insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds will be
issued by Financial Security Assurance Inc.

The ratings, when issued, reflect only the views of the respective ratings agencies, and an explanation of the significance of
such rating may be obtained therefrom. There is no assurance that the ratings will remain in effect for any given period of
time or that they will not be revised, either upward or downward, or withdrawn entirely, by the respective agencies, if, in
their judgment, circumstances so warrant. A revision or withdrawal of the credit rating could have an effect on the market
price of the Offered Obligations.

TAX MATTERS
Summary of Bond Counsel Opinion

Bond Counsel are of the opinion that under existing law, interest on the Offered Obligations is not includable in the gross
income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. If there is continuing compliance with the applicable
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™), Bond Counsel are of the opinion that interest on the
Offered Obligations will continue to be excluded from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax
purposes. Bond Counsel are further of the opinion that the Offered Obligations are not “private activity bonds” within the
meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code. Accordingly, interest on the Offered Obligations is not an item of tax preference for
purposes of computing individual or corporate alternative minimum taxable income. However, interest on the Offered
Obligations is includable in corporate earnings and profits and therefore must be taken into account when computing
corporate alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the corporate alternative minimum tax. Interest on the
Offered Obligations is not exempt from Wisconsin income taxes.

The Code contains certain requirements that must be satisfied from and after the date of issuance of the Offered Obligations
in order to preserve the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Offered Obligations.
These requirements relate to the use and investment of the proceeds of the Offered Obligations, the payment of certain
amounts to the United States, the security and source of payment of the Offered Obligations and the use of the property
financed with the proceeds of the Offered Obligations.

Offered Obligations Purchased at a Premium or at a Discount

The difference (if any) between the initial price at which a substantial amount of each maturity of the Offered Obligations is
sold to the public (the “Offering Price”) and the principal amount payable at maturity of such Offered Obligations is given
special treatment for federal income tax purposes. If the Offering Price is higher than the maturity value of a Offered
Obligation, the difference between the two is known as “bond premium;” if the Offering Price is lower than the maturity
value of a Offered Obligation, the difference between the two is known as “original issue discount.”
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Bond premium and original issue discount are amortized over the term of an Offered Obligation on the basis of the owner's
yield from the date of purchase to the date of maturity, compounded at the end of each accrual period of one year or less with
straight line interpolation between compounding dates, as provided more specifically in the Income Tax Regulations. The
amount of bond premium accruing during each period is treated as a reduction in the amount of tax-exempt interest earned
during such period. The amount of original issue discount accruing during each period is treated as interest that is excludable
from the gross income of the owner of such Offered Obligation for federal income tax purposes, to the same extent and with
the same limitations as current interest.

Owners who purchase Offered Obligations at a price other than the Offering Price, after the termination of the initial public
offering or at a market discount should consult their tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of their ownership of
the Offered Obligations. In addition, owners of Offered Obligations should consult their tax advisors with respect to the state
and local tax consequences of owning the Offered Obligations; under the applicable provisions of state or local income tax
law, bond premium and original issue discount may give rise to taxable income at different times and in different amounts
than they do for federal income tax purposes.

Exclusion from Gross Income: Requirements

The Code sets forth certain requirements that must be satisfied on a continuing basis in order to preserve the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Offered Obligations. Among these requirements are the
following:

Limitations on Private Use. The Code includes limitations on the amount of Offered Obligation proceeds that may be used
in the trade or business of, or used to make or finance loans to, persons other than governmental units.

Investment Restrictions. Except during certain “temporary periods,” proceeds of the Offered Obligations and investment
earnings thereon (other than amounts held in a reasonably required reserve or replacement fund, if any, or as part of a “minor
portion”) may generally not be invested in investments having a yield that is “materially higher” (1/8 of one percent) than the
yield on the Offered Obligations.

Rebate of Arbitrage Profit. Unless the City qualifies for an exemption, earnings from the investment of the “gross proceeds”
of the Offered Obligations in excess of the earnings that would have been realized if such investments had been made at a
yield equal to the yield on the Offered Obligations are required to be paid to the United States at periodic intervals. For this
purpose, the term “gross proceeds” includes the original proceeds of the Offered Obligations, amounts received as a result of
investing such proceeds and amounts to be used to pay debt service on the Offered Obligations.

Covenants to Comply

The City has covenanted to comply with the requirements of the Code relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes of interest on the Offered Obligations.

Risks of Non-Compliance

In the event that the City fails to comply with the requirements of the Code, interest on the Offered Obligations may become
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue. In such
event, the City’s agreements with the owners of the Offered Obligations require neither acceleration of payment of principal
of, or interest on, the Offered Obligations nor payment of any additional interest or penalties to the owners of the Offered
Obligations.

Federal Income Tax Consequences

Pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, interest on the Offered Obligations is not includable in the gross income of the owners
thereof for federal income tax purposes. However, the Code contains a number of other provisions relating to the treatment
of interest on the Offered Obligations that may affect the taxation of certain types of owners, depending on their particular tax
situations. Some of the potentially applicable federal income tax provisions are described in general terms below.
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE PARTICULAR
FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE OFFERED OBLIGATIONS.
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Cost of Carry. Owners of the Offered Obligations will generally be denied a deduction for otherwise deductible interest on
any debt which is treated for federal income tax purposes as incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Offered
Obligations. As discussed below, special allocation rules apply to financial institutions.

Corporate Owners. Interest on the Offered Obligations is generally taken into account in computing the earnings and profits
of a corporation and consequently may be subject to federal income taxes based thereon. Thus, for example, interest on the
Offered Obligations is taken into account not only in computing the corporate alternative minimum tax but also the branch
profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations, the passive investment income tax imposed on certain S corporations,
and the accumulated earnings tax.

Individual Owners. Receipt of interest on the Offered Obligations may increase the amount of social security and railroad
retirement benefits included in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal income tax purposes.

Certain Blue Cross or Blue Shield Organizations. Receipt of interest on the Offered Obligations may reduce a special
deduction otherwise available to certain Blue Cross or Blue Shield organizations.

Property or Casualty Insurance Companies. Receipt of interest on the Offered Obligations may reduce otherwise
deductible underwriting losses of a property or casualty insurance company.

Financial Institutions. Financial institutions may be denied a deduction for their otherwise allowable interest expense in an
amount determined by reference, in part, to their adjusted basis in the Offered Obligations.

Foreign Personal Holding Company Income. A United States shareholder of a foreign personal holding company may
realize taxable income to the extent that interest on the Offered Obligations held by such a company is properly allocable to
the shareholder.

The opinions of Bond Counsel and the descriptions of the tax law contained in this Official Statement are based on statutes,
judicial decisions, regulations, rulings and other official interpretations of law in existence on the date the Offered
Obligations are issued. There can be no assurance that such law or the interpretation thereof will not be changed or that new
provisions of law will not be enacted or promulgated at any time while the Offered Obligations are outstanding in a manner
that would adversely affect the value or the tax treatment of ownership of the Offered Obligations.

STATE TAX MATTERS

Interest on the Offered Obligations is not exempt from State of Wisconsin income tax or franchise tax.

NO DESIGNATION AS QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The City will not designate the Offered Obligations as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265 (b)(3)
of the Code.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (the "Rule™) promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the City shall covenant pursuant to a resolution
adopted by the Common Council to enter into an undertaking (the "Undertaking") for the benefit of holders including
beneficial holders of the Offered Obligations to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the City
to certain information repositories annually, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events enumerated in the Rule
to certain information repositories or the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and to any state information depository.
The details and terms of the Undertaking, as well as the information to be contained in the annual report or the notices of
material events, are set forth in the Master Continuing Disclosure Certificate and Addendums, which shall be made
applicable to the Offered Obligations pursuant to Schedules to be executed and delivered by the City at the time the Offered
Obligations are delivered. Such Certificate, Addendums, and Schedules will be in substantially the form attached hereto as
Appendix C. The City has never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous undertakings under the Rule to
provide annual reports or notices of material events. A failure by the City to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute
an event of default on the Offered Obligations (although holders will have the right to obtain specific performance of the
obligations under the Undertaking). Nevertheless, such a failure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be

48



considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Offered
Obligations in the secondary market. Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of
the Offered Obligations and their market price.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Robert W. Baird & Co. has been retained as Financial Advisor to the City in connection with the issuance of the Offered
Obligations. The Financial Advisor has requested and the City has consented to the Financial Advisor submitting bids for the
Offered Obligations.

UNDERWRITING

The Offered Obligations have been purchased at competitive bidding conducted on December 5, 2006.

The award of the G.O. Notes and G.O. Bonds was made to J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., New York, New York, its co-
managers and associates.

The award of the G.O. BANs was made to Banc of America Securities LLC, San Francisco, California, its co-managers and
associates.

The public reoffering yields of the Offered Obligations are detailed on the inside front cover of the Final Official Statement.

CLOSING DOCUMENTS AND CERTIFICATES

Simultaneously with the delivery of and payment for the Offered Obligations by the Underwriters thereof, the City will
furnish to the Underwriters the following closing documents, in form satisfactory to Bond Counsel:

(1) asignature and no litigation certificate;

(2) ataxcertificate;

(3) acertificate of delivery and payment;

(4) the opinions as to the legality of the Offered Obligations under Wisconsin law and as to the tax-exempt status of
the interest thereon for federal income tax purposes rendered by Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP, Chicago,
llinois, and Hurtado, S.C. Wauwatosa, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel to the City, in substantially the forms as set

forth in Appendix B;

(5) copies of this Official Statement issued in conjunction with the Offered Obligations within seven business days
after the award of the Offered Obligations in accordance with SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(3);

(6) a Continuing Disclosure Certificate; and
(7) astatement to the effect that this Official Statement, to the best of its knowledge and belief as of the date of sale
and the date of delivery, is true and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of

a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein, in light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
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REPRESENTATIONS OF THE CITY

To the best of its knowledge, the information in this Official Statement does not include any untrue statement of a material
fact, nor does the information omit the statement of any material fact required to be stated therein, or necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information may be obtained from the undersigned City Comptroller upon request.

W. MARTIN MORICS, City Comptroller and Secretary
City of Milwaukee, Public Debt Commission
City Hall, Room 404
200 East Wells Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 286-3321

/s/ W. Martin Morics

Comptroller
City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin

December 5, 2006
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APPENDIX A

Audited Annual Financial Report of
the City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin
for the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Selected Sections

The complete Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
can be downloaded at the City Comptroller’s web page at:

www.milwaukee.gov
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)

Exhibit 1

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents .............cccccevvvieeens $ 267,200 $ 58,804 $ 326,004
Investments ..., 45,885 - 45,885
Receivables (net):
TAXES  vveeceieieii et 167,873 45 167,918
ACCOUNES ..o 19,694 24,982 44,676
Unbilled accounts ...........c.oooceiieiiiiiiiieeeees 478 14,162 14,640
Special assessments .............cccceeeiiiiiceeneens 17,500 - 17,500
Notesand loans .............c.cceeeiiiiiiiiicie e 51,218 - 51,218
Accrued interest ... 1,927 142 2,069
Due from component units ............cccoeeeeiiieieennn. 15,129 - 15,129
Due from primary government ................cccccceeenen. - - -
Due from other governmental agencies .............. 196,477 - 196,477
Inventory of materials and supplies ..................... 5,343 2,526 7,869
Inventory of property forresale ...............cccce 26 - 26
Prepaid items ... 334 11 345
Deferred charges ... 2,749 594 3,343
Other assets .......ccccccviivven i - 355 355
Total non-capital assets .........cccccoeceeviiieenieeen. 791,833 101,621 893,454
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land ..o 163,482 18,012 181,494
Construction in progress .........cccccecveveerieenns 64,594 46,176 110,770
Capital assets being depreciated:
BuildingS .....cooeeieiee e 160,313 84,355 244,668
Infrastructure ..., 1,298,714 606,460 1,905,174
Improvements other than buildings ............... 9,082 25,067 34,149
Machinery and equipment ... 122,716 206,736 329,452
Furniture and furnishings ...........cccccoveiieen - 70 70
Nonutility property ........ccccovviviieniinecinnn - 3,019 3,019
Accumulated depreciation ................ccccoceeee. (945,157) (308,956) (1,254,113)
Total Capital Assets .......ccooovviiiiiieeieee 873,744 680,939 1,554,683
Total ASSetS .....cccvcvvvciv i 1,665,577 782,560 2,448,137

Component
Units

$ 87,939
3,320

2,318

65,813
1,486

3,486
6,901

15,075
1,531
962
1,342

190,173

55,713
72,968

337,227

259

3,909
(198,141)

271,935

462,108
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)

Exhibit 1 (Continued)

LIABILITIES

Internal balances
Due to component units
Due to other governmental agencies
Deferred revenue
Revenue anticipation notes payable
Other payables
Other liabilities
Due to primary government:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Long-term obligations:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Othér purboses
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

.................... (10,973) 10,973 - -
................... 3,486 - 3,486 -
................... 4,421 1,804 6,225 3,263

.................... 260,042 120 260,162 1,910
.................... 182,000 - 182,000 -
e . . : 6,189
.................... - - - 843
.................... - - - 14,286
.................... 83,399 11,606 95,005 1,365
.................... 666,505 110,057 776,562 120,571
.................... 1,260,264 149,621 1,409,885 175,707
B ~ 207 o 207 37,215
.................... (196,677) 63,657 (133,020) 57,466
................... $ 405,313 $ 632,939 $ 1,038,252 $ 286,401

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit 2
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Primary government:
Governmental Activities:

General government ..........cccccceeiiiiieecie e $ 180,975 $ 11,049 $ 2,086 $ -
Public safety ........ccccevviiieci e, 263,852 13,888 14,567 -
Public works .........ccocveeceiiie e 155,048 35,382 3,521 -
Health ..o 27,036 693 16,314 -
Culture and recreation ..................ccccoeeeeens 19,931 1,808 2,418 -
Conservation and development ..................... 57,245 590 23,625 -
Capital contribution to Milwaukee Public
SChOOIS .. 18,002 - - -
Contributions ..., 25,465 - 25,187 -
Interest on long-term debt ..............ccceeerieen. 22,589 - - -
Total Governmental Activities .................. 770,143 63,410 87,718 -
Business-type Activities:
Water ..o 58,230 71,903 - 1,850
Sewer Maintenance ... 26,096 31,072 - -
Parking .....oooooiiee e 22,369 38,961 - -
Port of Milwaukee ............c..ccccooeeiiiiiiiin 3,252 4,959 - -
Metropolitan Sewerage District
User Charges .........ccccoiiiininniiiiiinsieeninnns 31,5637 31,436 - -
Total Business-type Activities ................. 141,484 178,331 - 1,850
Total Primary Government ..........c.ccccovveeinveriennnns $ 911,627 $ 241,741 $ 87,718 $ 1,850
Component units:
Housing AUthOFItY .....cococoovvieieeee e $ 83,840 $ 17,839 $ 44,29 $ 17,784
Redevelopment Authority ...........cccoocceviiinenn. 6,353 2,354 3,315 -
Milwaukee Economic Development Authority 3,979 2,323 250 -
Neighborhood Improvement Development
Corporation  ..........cooceiiiiiie e 1,747 441 916 -
Total Component Units ...........cccoeveirieieirieirecninn, $ 95,919 $ 22,957 $ 48,777 $ 17,784
General revenues:
Property taxes and othertaxes ............ccooviiiiiiiiiin e
State aids for General Fund ...............c.ccooooi i
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs ...............
MISCellaNEOUS .......oooiiiiiiiie i
Special item - receipt of loans receivable .............ccccccovicn e,
Special item - transfer of loan portfolio to other government ..................
L= 103 =T PR
Total General Revenues and Transfers ............cccccceccevvieecicennssenennn
Change in Net ASSEtS ......cccvcii i e
Net Assets - Beginning, as Restated ...
Net Assets - ENding .........cccommmmmmmnnmnnn s s s snsnns

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2 (Continued)

Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ (167,840) $ (167,840)
(235,397) (235,397)
(116,145) (116,145)
(10,029) (10,029)
(15,705) (15,705)
(33,030) (33,030)
(18,002) (18,002)
(278) (278)
(22,589) (22,589)
(619,015) (619,015)
5 $ 15,523 15,523
. 4,976 4,976
- 16,592 16,592
- 1,707 1,707
- (101) (101)
- 38,697 38,697
(619,015) 38,697 (580,318)
224,918 - 224,918
272,875 - 272,875
82,796 1,460 84,256
14,325 - 14,325
33,631 (33,631) -
628,545 (32,171) 596,374
9,530 6,526 16,056
395,783 626,413 1,022,196
$ 405,313 $ 632,939 $ 1,038,252

Component

Units

390
(6,401)

3,51(;
(12,672-)
~ (95%)
(15,557)
301,958

$ 286,401
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit A-1
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
General
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..o $ 103,583
INVESIMENES ...ttt e e e st e e et te e e ee e e s sae e e enae e e eaeeas 297
Receivables (net):
B =) G TP 106,403
Voo o LW o] PRSP 14,936
L o111 =To B T oo 11 1 O 478
Special aSSESSMENIS  ......ooiiiii i s -
NOLES aNA IOBNS ... ettt e 214
AcCrued INTEIESt ... e e 1,546
Due from other fuNASs ... et ee e e 35,727
Due from COMPONENE UNIES  ......oouiiiiiiiiie ittt se e 810
Due from other governmental agenCies ...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,002
Advances to other fUNAS ... e 14,673
Inventory of materials and SUPPIIES ........cccoouiiiii i 5,069
Inventory of property fOr FeSalE  ........ooiiiiiii e 26
Prepaid iemMS  ....ociii i e 334
e LT L $ 285,098
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ... e $ 24,031
ACCTUE EXPENSES  ....oiiiiii ittt bttt eb bt et et sh e et sn e se e e e e 23,876
[ 1= (o0 010 1= o 07 Lo 509
Due to COMPONENE UNIES  .......oiiiiiiii it n s 2
Due to other governmental ageNnCies ..........cc.coiiiiiiiiiiiiie e -
Deferred FEVENUE ...ttt e e e et ee e e e eaebeeeseasaaneeeaeeannrees 151,453
Revenue anticipation notes payable ... -
Advances from other funds ..........cccccc i —————— -
Total Liabiliies ........ocooiiiee e 199,871
Fund Balances:
Reserved for debt service ... -
Reserved for delinquent taxes receivable ..., -
Reserved for economic development ... -
Reserved for encumbrances, prepaids, and Carryovers ...........ccccocovvvieeieniienseennenn. 16,382
Reserved for iNVENTOTY  ........oooii i e 5,095
Reserved for mortgage trust ... 297
Reserved for environmental remediation ... 303
Reserved for tax stabilization - 2006 ..............ccco oo 16,328
Reserved for tax stabilization - 2007 and subsequent years' budgets and advances
0 Other TUNAS ..o e eetae e e an 46,822
Unreserved:
UNdESIgNated ..o e -
Special assessment (defiCit) ..........cccoiiiiiiii i - -
Total FUNd BalaNCES ........ooiiiii et e ee e an 85,227
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ..o s ssssnes $ 285,098

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit A-1 (Continued)

General
Obligation
Debt
Service

46,264

36,679
278

14,286
182,000

$ 364,206

128,823
182,000

319,999

44,207

44,207
$ 364,206

Public
Debt
Amortization

$ 73,692

73,692
$ 73,692

Capital
Projects

7,076
3,151

17,500

1,403

274

$ 67,002

2554
3,013
29,458

14,673
67,840

13,981
274

(15,093)
838

$ 67,002

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$ 49,486

10,497

26,783
$ 49,486

Total

167,873
19,694
478
17,500
51,218
1,927
35,727
15,129
196,477
14,673
5,343
26

334

$ 839,484

3,486
4,421
318,742
182,000
14,673

610,413

127,560
6,624

1
30,363
5,369
297

303
16,328

46,822

10,497

(15,093)
229,071

$ 839,484
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit A-2
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 229,071

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets (Exhibit A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

Construction in progress 64,594
873,744
Deferred charges for debt issuance costs are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 2,749
Some revenues are deferred in the funds because they are not available to pay
current period's expenditures.
58,700

I Anm tarm linhilitiane Aara nat Adilia and nairahila in tha Anerant nariad And tharafara Ara

current ana 1ong-term - are reporiea in ne sdiement Or Net assets.

Accrued interest payable (9,047)

[ - YOO DRGSR [ § PP _ SRS N D 1IAn A AOECN

The noftes to the financial statements are an integral part of this reconciliation.
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit A-3
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
General
Revenues:
L (oo 1=t F= OO $ 135,610
(11T P2 L SRS 3,709
SPeCial @SSESSMENES  ......coiiiiiii it -
Licenses and PEIMIS ........oc.oiiiiii e 13,374
INErgOVEIMMENTAl ... ..ottt e et eh e e eb e ekt sbeesn e e sbe e e an e e e e 272,875
Charges fOr SEIVICES ...ttt bttt s e e e et eb e e n e en b b e e e e 63,410
FiNes and fOrfEItS ........oooiiiiiiii et e e e et ae e e e eareee e e an 5,893
ContribULIONS FECRIVEA ... ... e e e e et e e e e erbeee e e ennnes 25,187
L0 {1 TSP 12,179
TOtAl REVENUES .......eeeeii ettt e et e e s et aeaeee e e sanbeeeeeeennres 532,237
Expenditures:
Current:
General GOVEIMMENT ... .oo ittt et ea e b e e e e sae e s b e e e e e abeaanesane e e 206,055
o)1= =Y P 248,366
PUDIIC WOTKS oot e et ee e e et e e e e e ebeae e e e saarbeeaeaan 89,180
i (=T 1 { 10,656
Culture and reCreation  ............ccooiiiiiiii e 16,744
Conservation and develOPMENT .............ooiiiiiiiiii e 2,767
L02= 071 v= 101U 1= PP PP PPRTUPP -
Debt Service:
Principal retireMent ... e -
1 (= = TSP -
BONd iSSUBNCE COSES  .....viiiiiieii ettt st e e r e s sn e s sn e e e sr e e s sr e s nnneeeesrreeens -
Total EXPENAItUIES  ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiii it n s s bbb n e 573,768
Excess (deficiency) of Revenues over EXpenditures ............cccouivviieniiiiin s snesseensiennns 41,531
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
General obligation bonds and notes isSUEd ............ccccccv i -
Refunding bonds ISSUEA .........ccociiiiiiiin e e -
Payment to refunded bond eScrow agent ..o -
ST U= g Loz W o (=T 01U T o PP -
QL= T T3 L= = 39,725
= 10T 1= 53 LU R )
Total Other Financing Sources and USES ...........cceceriiiiiiiniensiin s sssesnee 39,722
Special Item:
Receipt of [0ans receivable ... -
Net Change in FUNd BalanCes ..ot e (1,809)
Fund Balances - BegiNNING ..........cccoiiviiiiieiniiee e ee e ee e sr e n s snne e s sr e r s nnnees 87,036
Fund Balances - ENdiNG ..o s s s s s s s s s s e s $ 85,227

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit A-3 (Continued)

General
Obligation
Debt
Service

$ 52,942
14,695

1,066
5,352

5,214
79,269

81,206
29,593
750

111,549

(32,280)

28,112
(30,492)
12,209

400

43,807

$ 44,207

Public
Debt

Amortization

$ =
2,057

(1,142)

74,834

$ 73,692

Capital
Projects

$ 12,946
4,651

18,243

1,635
37,375

138,839

137
138,976

(101,601)

112,873

1,483

11,440

(12,278)

$ (838)

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$ 3,707

63,222

8,108
75,037

3,387
14,568
3,521
16,314
2,418
29,312

69,520

5,517

13,955

14,325

14,662

12,121

$ 26,783

Total

$ 205,205
20,461
4,651
13,374
355,406
68,762
5,893
25,187
32,333

731,272

209,446
262,934
92,701
26,970
19,162
32,079
138,839

81,206

29,593
887

893,817

(162,545)

126,828
28,112
(30,492)
13,602

14,325

23,551

205,520

$ 229,071
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit A-4
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported

Notes and loans receivable to repay long-term bonds and notes (2)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are

at end of the year $16,382 1,912
1,164

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Debt issued:

Bonds and notes issued (126,828)

Dafiinmdina hanada innnad D0 44D\

riemnnuris 0,949
Deferred amount on refunding (1,378)
(48,436)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures
are not recognized for transactions that are not normal paid with expendable available financial
resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the accrual basis,
expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In
addition, interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting until due, rather as it accrues. The adjustment combines the net changes of the

Accrued interest on bonds and notes 541
1,232

Changes in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 2) $ 9,530

The nofes to the financial statements are an integral part of this reconciliation.

47



CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit B-1
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
ASSETS
Investments ... - - - - -
Receivables (net):
LT J P - - - 45 45
ACCOUNLS ..o 10,571 7,163 - 7,248 24,982
Unbilled accounts ...........ccoooeieiiiiiicie e, 9,471 2,754 - 1,937 14,162
Accrued interest ..o 135 7 - - 142
Due from other funds .......cccccovveveviiiiiiiie, 6,559 801 - 2,096 9,456
Inventory of materials and supplies ...................... 2,526 - - - 2,526
Prepaid items .........ccooooiiiiii 11 - - - 11
Deferred charges ... - 594 - - 594
Other assets ............cccccvviiiiiinn e e 355 - - - 355
Total Current Assets .........ccccccveeeevciiiiieciees 58,669 11,319 22,001 11,326 103,315
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents .................. - 7,762 - - 7,762
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land ..o 1,542 - 8,562 7,908 18,012
Construction in progress .......cccccevvveeeeininennns 11,525 32,354 2,297 - 46,176
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings .....coooeeiieiie e 22,852 - 49,087 12,416 84,355
Infrastructure ...........ccooovieeiiiiiie e, 295,104 311,356 - - 606,460
Improvements other than buildings ................ - - 5,498 19,569 25,067
Machinery and equipment ..., 197,870 3,247 1,011 4,608 206,736
Furniture and furnishings ...........cc.ccccooeee - 22 - 48 70
Nonutility property .........ccoooiiiiiieee 3,019 - - - 3,019
Accumulated depreciation ..............cccccccvnne (166,389) (94,246) (25,500) (22,821) (308,956)
Total Noncurrent Assets ..., 365,523 260,495 40,955 21,728 688,701
Total ASSEtS .....ccovvviieiiii i 424,192 271,814 62,956 33,054 792,016
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE

Exhibit B-1 (Continued)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable ..............cccocciiiiiiie $ 3,639 $ 972 $ 1,052 $ 6,442 $ 12,105
Accrued expenses ... 933 620 404 117 2,074
Accrued interest payable ..., 410 - 187 59 656
Compensated absences ........ccccccccvevvieeeiieeeeneen. 1,031 - - - 1,031
Duetootherfunds ...............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiin 4,169 8,416 - 7,844 20,429
Due to other governmental agencies .................. 803 1,001 - - 1,804
Deferredrevenue .............cccoooeiiiieiiiiieeeeeeeee s - - 45 75 120
General obligation debt payable - current ............ 4,692 - 2,080 477 7,249
Revenue bonds payable - current ........................ 846 - - - 846
Total Current Liabilities .................c..cc.ooee 16,523 11,009 3,768 15,014 46,314
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Revenue bonds payable ..o - 2,480 - - 2,480
Accrued interest payable ..., - 226 - - 226
Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets ............oooooeeiiiiiiiieeieeeees - 2,706 - - 2,706
Noncurrent Liabilities:
General obligationdebt ...............cccco i 23,706 - 11,974 3,770 39,450
Revenue bonds payable ... 12,075 58,532 - - 70,607
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ............................. 35,781 58,532 11,974 3,770 110,057
Total Liabilities .............ccooooooiie 52,304 72,247 15,742 18,784 159,077
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ......... 324,203 191,721 27,494 17,481 560,899
Restricted for Debt Service ............ccoeoiiiiiiiiees 621 7,762 - - 8,383
Unrestricted ..o 47,064 84 19,720 (3,211) 63,657
Total Net Assets .........cccccecvcrvccicnicceennsneennns $371,888 $199,567 $ 47,214 $ 14,270 $632,939

The noftes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit B-2
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
WaALEE SAIES  ..ocvvveeeeeeeeeeeeee e eee e e e eee e enenan e e areene s $ 59,133 $ - $ - % - $ 59133
Statutory sewer userfee ........ccocoooiiiiiiiiiie i - - - 29,868 29,868
Sewer maintenance fee .........ocooceeviiieieiiiieeee e, - 31,067 - - 31,067
Rent ..o - - 6,742 4,888 11,630
Fire protection service ........ccccoociiiiiiiniiiiie e 5,910 - - - 5,910
Parking meters ... - - 4,198 - 4,198
Parking permits ..........ccooiiiiiiii e - - 2,527 - 2,527
Vehicle towing ..o - - 4,953 - 4,953
Parking forfeitures ..........cccoovviiiiii - - 19,833 - 19,833
Other .. s 6,476 5 - 1,638 8,119
Total Operating Revenues ...........ccccoovcvvvcieeiinen. 71,519 31,072 38,253 36,394 177,238
Operating Expenses:
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District charges ... - - - 27,177 27177
Employee Services ........ccccevvieeeiiiin e - 7,497 6,494 1,437 15,428
Administrative and general ................ocociiiiiiinn 4,953 - - 31 4,984
Depreciation ............coceeceeii i 12,000 4,198 2,216 910 19,324
Transmission and distribution ...........ccccccvvivieiieienn 17,594 - - 2,789 20,383
Services, supplies and materials ..o - 7,525 12,865 817 21,207
Watertreatment ... 12,303 - - - 12,303
Water pumping  ......coooveiiriiiee e 7,169 - - - 7,169
Billing and collection .........ccccccccevnviinicnn e 2,266 - - 1,416 3,682
Total Operating EXpenses .........ccccoeeveveviieeeiiieenns 56,285 19,220 21,575 34,577 131,657
Operating Income (LOSS) ....ccccceviiivviniiiiiiie e 15,234 11,852 16,678 1,817 45,581
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income .........ccccoeeiiii 1,142 318 - - 1,460
Interest EXPENSEe .......c.cccvceii i (1,945) (2,562) (794) (212) (5,513)
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets ...............c.e.u. - - 555 1 556
Other ..o 384 (4,314) 153 - (3,777)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) ........... (419) (6,558) (86) (211) (7,274)
Income (Loss) before Contributions and Transfers.. 14,815 5,294 16,592 1,606 38,307
Capital contributions ...........cccccceoii i 1,850 - - - 1,850
Transfers iN .......cccccvveieisii e e e - - - 729 729
Transfers OUt .........cccooeiiiiiiieeecee e (7,668) (7,000) (16,782) (2,910) (34,360)
Change in Net Assets  .......ccccviivieniieiiseeseesnien 8,997 (1,706) (190) (575) 6,526
Total Net Assets - Beginning .........ccccoovvvieeiien e 362,891 201,273 47,404 14,845 626,413
Total Net Assets - Ending ..........ccccevvinmiinnnnnissnisnnnnans $371,888 $199,567 $ 47,214 $14,270 $ 632,939

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit B-3
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers and users ..............cccocceeeenne $ 71,419 $ 30,730 §$ 38,186 $35923 $176,258
Cash receipts from other funds ............ccccooiiiiiinne. 2,442 - - - 2,442
Other operating cash receipts ...........ccoooeeiiiiiiinien - 5 - - 5
Payments to suppliers ...........ccooeeniiineniieen (20,323) (9,351) (13,919) (31,595) (75,188)
Payments to employees ..o, (21,864) (7,418) (6,449) (1,416) (37,147)
Payments from other funds .............ccooiiiiiniiii - 8,416 - (276) 8,140
Payments to other funds ..........ccccccviiiiiiiniiiinciin i (3,723) - - 764 (2,959)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities................ 27,951 22,382 17,818 3,400 71,551

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Miscellaneous nonoperating revenue ..............ccccocceeennnee 384 - - - 384
Other nonoperating eXpenses .........c..ccccvveviieniineseeniiennns - (11,314) - - (11,314)
Transfers from other funds .........ccc.cccv v, - - - 222 222
Transfers to other funds ..o, (7,668) - (16,782) (2,910) (27,360)
Net Cash Used for Noncapital Financing
ACHIVIIES ..o (7,284) (11,314) (16,782) (2,688) (38,068)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contributions ...........cccocive i - - - 537 537
Proceeds from sale of bonds and notes .........ccccceeeeenn.. - - 1,110 200 1,310
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment ................ (15,258) (19,089) (760) (725) (35,832)
Retirement of bonds, notes and revenue bonds ........... (5,676) (2,390) (3,767) (506) (12,339)
Interest paid ........c.cooiiiiinii (1,964) (2,762) (796) (219) (5,741)
Other e - - 1,086 - 1,086
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investmentincome ... 1,076 325 - - 1,401
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents ... (1,155) (12,848) (2,091) (1) (16,095)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning ............ccccccvivennn 30,196 20,610 24,092 1 74,899

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending ............ccccceviennnnn $ 29041 $ 7,762 $ 22001 $ - $ 58,804




CITY OF MILWAUKEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)

Exhibit B-3 (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Year End Consist of:

Unrestricted Cash ..o $ 28420 $ - $ 22001 §$ - $ 50,421
Restricted Cash .........ooovvve v 621 7,762 - - 8,383
$ 29041 $ 7,762 § 22001 §$ - $ 58,804

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating iNcome (I0SS) .........cccoovuerererieireeireeeeeeees $ 15234 $ 11852 § 16,678 $ 1,817 $ 45,581
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation ........cccccoeceiiiiiiie e 12,000 4,198 2,216 910 19,324
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables ........ccccocvviiiiiiiie e (307) (518) - (424) (1,249)
Due from otherfunds ............cccoocoiiiiiie 2,442 181 - (1,259) 1,364
Inventories ......ooooeviie e 71 - - - 71
Prepaid items ........cccooooiiiiii e 2 - - - 2
Other assets .........ccccovviiiiini e (19) - - - (19)
Accounts payable ............ccccoeeiiiiiiei (1,481) (1,826) (1,054) 635 (3,726)
Accrued liabilities .........coooeviiiei 9 79 45 21 154
Due to other governmental agencies ................... - - - - -
Duetootherfunds .............cccociiiiiiiiiiei - 8,416 - 1,748 10,164
Deferred revenue .........c.cccccoceeeviieecicnn e e - - (67) (48) (115)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ......................... $ 27951 §$ 22382 $ 17818 § 3,400 $ 71,551

Non-cash Activities:
During the year, the city disposed of parking assets of $377 thousand net book value.

During the year, water mains and related property, installed by others were deeded to the Water Works

in the amount of $1.850 million.

During the year, the Sewer Maintenance Fund donated or disposed of fixed assets with a net value of $155 thousand.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit C-1
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
S R
Benefit Purpose Agency
Trusts Trusts Funds
U1t eI e A TR S seae e e srenree - - vy PN
Investments ... - 3,840 -
Total Assets .......cccovrviir i 200 6,291 $ 270,107
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ..............cce i, 33 3 1,917
Due to other governmental agencies ............ - - 268,190
Total Liabilities ..........ccoovvevrercecee 33 3 $ 270,107
Net Assets
Employees' pension benefits
and other purposSes .........c.cccoeeveeeevevsieennns $ 167 $ 6,288
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit C-2
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
S R
Benefit Purpose
Trusts Trusts
Private donation; ............................................................................................................................................. - 946
Total ContribUtions .........cc.coccviieiiiiiii e e 979 946
Investment earnings:
Net (depreciation) appreciation in
fair value of investments, dividends and interest .................. - 93
Total ADditions .........cocccieiiiieece e e 979 1,039
Deductions
BenefilsS ..o 946 -
Fees remitted from Trust ... - 1,092
(0 1= PP - 830
Total Deductions ...........ccccoeeeieiiiiiii e 946 1,922
Change in Net ASSets .......cccce v 33 (883)
Net Assets - Beginning, as Restated ............ccccccooiiiiiiicn e, 134 7,171
Net Assets - ENiNG  ....cooooiiiiii e $ 167 $ 6,288

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
Milwaukee Neighborhood
Economic Improvement
Housing Redevelopment Development Development
Authority Authority Corporation Corporation Total
ASSETS
Receivables (net):
ACCOUNES  ..ovvviiiiiiiiii i 1,260 858 2 198 2,318
Notes and 10aNs  .........ccccceeeiieiiiiiiiiice e 12,061 14,502 38,619 631 65,813
IIIVUIILUIy vl FIUPUI I.y VI 1TAIT  ciiiiccccccannnnnnnnns IOV 11,131 1,407 1rIt 1V,VI9
Prepaid items .......ccccoceiiieiciincrecne e 1,498 33 - - 1,531
Deferred charges .........cccocoeveeiiieicnienieenens - 962 - - 962
Other assefs ......cccceeviiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 834 - 506 2 1,342
Total Noncapital Assets ..........cccoccevvieviinennnnen, 50,644 81,174 52,847 5,508 190,173
at e At aar e A T s s reere e ren ey~ - e ——yr e
Construction in progress ............ccccoeeevee 33,655 39,313 - - 72,96
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings ........ccoooiiiii e 319,576 17,651 - - 337,227
Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 206,783 65,120 32 - 271,935
Total AsSets .....ccovevveevrienrenierenes 257,427 146,294 52,879 5,508 462,108
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Exhibit D-1 (Continued)

COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2005
(Thousands of Dollars)
Milwaukee Neighborhood
Economic Improvement
Housing Redevelopment Development Development
Authority Authority Corporation Corporation Total
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental agencies ............. - 2,773 490 - 3,263
Deferred revenue ..........cccceeeeeiiiiiiiiiissnssnnnnes 3 1,822 - 85 1,910
Other liabilities ...........cccoooeiiiiiiii 1,469 2,853 547 1,320 6,189
Total Current Liabilities ............ccccocoieennne 13,432 22,168 1,346 1,696 38,642
Due to primary government:
Due withinone year .........cccccceevviiiiiiiiiinennns 718 21 10 94 843
Due in more thanone year .................cc.cc...... - 11,685 2,601 - 14,286
Total Due to Primary Government ............... 718 11,706 2,611 94 15,129
Long-term obligations:
Due withinone year .........cccccceeiviiiiiiiiiinennns 795 570 - - 1,365
Due in more thanone year .................cc.cc...... 27,990 92,581 - - 120,571
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ..................... 28,785 93,151 - - 121,936
Total Liabilities ........c.ccocoviiiiiiie 42,935 127,025 3,957 1,790 175,707
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ... 182,306 9,382 32 - 191,720
Restricted ... 27,968 1,527 6,930 790 37,215
Unrestricted ... 4,218 8,360 41,960 2,928 57,466
Total Net Assets .........ccccvniniiinnnnns $ 214,492 $ 19,269 $ 48,922 $ 3,718 $ 286,401

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit D-2
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Thousands of Dollars)
Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Housing Authority

Low income housing .........ccccocevvviiinvsnecrsinsecne e $ 83,840 $ 17,839 $ 44,296 $ 17,784
Redevelopment Authority

Prevention and elimination of blight ..............c......... 6,353 2,354 3,315 -
Milwaukee Economic Development Corporation

Increase employment & expansion of business ..... 3,979 2,323 250 -
Neighborhood Improvement Development Corp.

Housing improvements .............ccccoeiieniienicnien 1,747 441 916 -

Total Component Units ..........ccccccvvevverieiienieninens $ 95,919 $ 22,957 $ 48,777 $ 17,784

General revenues:
T =Y 1= 1= 10 L

Special item - transfer of loan portfolio to other government ..........
Total General Revenues and Special ltem ................ccccecnenee.

Change in Net ASSetS .......ccccocvviveniiiiin e e

Net Assets - Beginning, as Restated...............cccoo oo

Net Assets - ENdiNg  .......ccoeviiin e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit D-2 (Continued)

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Housing
Authority

$ (3,921)

(3,921)

1,179

1,179

$214,492

Milwaukee  Neighborhood

Economic Improvement
Redevelopment Development Development
Authority Corporation Corporation Total
$ - $ - $ - $ (3,921)
(684) - - (684)
- (1,406) - (1,406)
- - (390) (390)
684 (1,406) (390) (6,401)
1,531 761 45 3,516
- - (12,672) (12,672)
1,531 761 (12,627) (9,156)
$ 19,269 $ 48,922 $ 3,718 $286,401
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3. PROPERTY TAXES

2000 and prior $ 1,154 $ 1,637 $ 2,791
2001 390 551 941
2002 716 1,064 1,780
2003 1,584 2,361 3,945
2004 5,682 9,059 14,741
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CITY OF MILWAUKEE Exhibit E-1
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

(Thousands of Dollars)
Budget Budget Basis (Negative)
Revenues:
Property axes ..o $ 139,930 $ 139,930 $ 135,610 $ (4,320)
Othertaxes ........ccccceevviii i 2,915 2,915 3,709 794
Licenses and permits ...........cccoeei i, 10,231 10,231 13,374 3,143
Intergovernmental ............ccccceiiinii 272,544 272,544 272,875 331
Charges for ServiCes .........cccovvniiiiiinciienii e 56,523 56,523 63,410 6,887
Fines and forfeits ............cocoveeeeieiiiie e e e e 5,213 5,213 5,893 680
Other ... 7,812 8,029 12,179 4,150
Total ReVENUES .......cccccvvvvieeeceeee e 495,168 495,385 507,050 11,665
Expenditures:
Current;
General government ..........ccccccvviiinen s sinsseen e 202,239 189,091 180,590 8,501
Public safety .........cccceviiiiicni e 229,145 249,184 248,366 818
PUblic WOTKS  .......ccueiiiiiiicie e e 80,740 89,415 89,180 235
Health ..o e 9,765 10,688 10,656 32
Culture and recreation ...........ccccooevveieveisisisinnnnnrenens 16,279 16,841 16,744 97
Conservation and development .............c...ccccoeeeee. 2,963 2,966 2,767 199
Total Expenditures ..........ccccccoceeviiieeeeneeecicie e 541,131 558,185 548,303 9,882
Deficiency of Revenues over Expenditures .......... (45,963) (62,800) (41,253) 21,547
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers N .......oooiiiiiie e 26,064 34,402 39,725 5,323
Transfers out ... - (3) (3) -
Contributions received ... 25,098 25,098 25,187 89
Contributions used .............coooiiiii e (23,335) (27,223) (25,465) 1,758
Use of fund balance - reserved for tax stabilization .... 16,621 16,621 16,621 -
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses ............. 44,448 48,895 56,065 7,170
Net Change in Fund Balance .............ccc.ccoocnnneee (1,515) (13,905) 14,812 28,717
Fund Balance - Beginning (Excludes Reserved for
Tax Stabilization) .........cccccocviiiiinii 70,415 70,415 70,415 -
Fund Balance - ENding ..........cccocnnmnninminnnnsnnnssssssnnsnns $ 68,900 $ 56,510 $ 85,227 $ 28,717

Explanation of Differences of Budget to GAAP:

Enr hitdant niirmnacas tha fiind halanan  racarmind far tav atahilizatinn io raflantad ac Aathar finanaina annirnne uhAaraas

Lapildl ISads paylliciin ad PUViiv DaiGly CANGIIVUIUITIGD.

Contributions received and used for budget purposes are reported as other financing sources, but for GAAP are
considered to be revenues and expenditures.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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December 20, 2006

The City Comptroller and the
Commissioners of the Public Debt of the
City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin

We have examined a record of proceedings relating to the issuance of $25,205,000
aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2006 N9 (the
“Notes”) of the City of Milwaukee (the “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of
Wisconsin. The Notes are authorized and issued pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 65 and
Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the City Charter and by virtue of resolutions passed by
the Common Council of the City on December 13, 2005 and July 31, 2006.

The Notes constitute an issue of “promissory notes” under Section 67.12(12) of the
Wisconsin Statutes, are issuable in fully registered form in the denominations of $5,000 or any
integral multiple thereof, and are dated as of December 20, 2006. The Notes mature (without
option of prior redemption) on February 15 in each of the following years in the respective
principal amount set forth opposite each such year in the following table, and bear interest from
their date, payable on August 15, 2007 and semiannually thereafter on February 15 and
August 15 of each year, at the respective rate of interest per annum set forth opposite such year:

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate
2008 $1,440,000 4.125%
2009 2,410,000 4.125
2010 2,445,000 4.125
2011 3,140,000 4.250
2012 2,945,000 4.250
2013 3,395,000 4.250
2014 3,240,000 4.250
2015 3,070,000 5.000
2016 3,120,000 5.000

In our opinion, the Notes are valid and legally binding general obligations of the City,
and the City has power and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property
within the City for the payment of the Notes and the interest thereon, without limitation as to rate
or amount. The enforceability of rights or remedies with respect to the Notes, however, may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies
heretofore or hereafter enacted.

We are further of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Notes is not
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes. If there is
continuing compliance with the applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the “Code”), we are of the opinion that interest on the Notes will continue to be excluded from
the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes. We are further of the
opinion that the Notes are not “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141(a) of
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the Code; accordingly, interest on the Notes is not an item of tax preference for purposes of
computing individual or corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Interest on the Notes,
however, is includable in earnings and profits of a corporation and therefore must be taken into
account when computing corporate alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the
corporate alternative minimum tax.

The Code contains certain requirements that must be satisfied from and after the date
hereof in order to preserve the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes of
interest on the Notes. These requirements relate to the use and investment of the proceeds of the
Notes, the payment of certain amounts to the United States, the security and source of payment
of the Notes and the use of the property financed with the proceeds of the Notes. The City has
covenanted to comply with these requirements.

Interest on the Notes is not exempt from Wisconsin income taxes.
Respectfully submitted,

LG/be

B-2
CHI02_60521497_3_335658_00004 11/29/2006 2:48 PM



December 20, 2006

The City Comptroller and the
Commissioners of the Public Debt of the
City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin

We have examined a record of proceedings relating to the issuance of $19,105,000
aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 B10
(the “Bonds”) of the City of Milwaukee (the “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of
Wisconsin. The Bonds are authorized and issued pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 65 and
Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the City Charter and by virtue of resolutions passed by
the Common Council of the City on January 18, 2006.

The Bonds constitute an issue of “corporate purpose bonds” under Section 67.05 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, are issuable in fully registered form in the denominations of $5,000 or any
integral multiple thereof, and are dated as of December 20, 2006. The Bonds bear interest from
their date at the rate of five percentum (5%) per annum, payable on August 15, 2007 and
semiannually thereafter on February 15 and August 15 of each year. The Bonds mature on
February 15 in each of the following years in the respective principal amount set forth opposite
each such year in the following table:

Year Principal Amount
2017 $3,185,000
2018 2,595,000
2019 2,665,000
2020 2,740,000
2021 2,815,000
2022 2,900,000
2023 2,205,000

The Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2018 are subject to redemption prior to
maturity at the option of the City, in such principal amounts and from such maturities as the City
shall determine and by lot within a single maturity, on February 15, 2017 and on any date
thereafter, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus
accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.

In our opinion, the Bonds are valid and legally binding general obligations of the City,
and the City has power and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property
within the City for the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon, without limitation as to
rate or amount. The enforceability of rights or remedies with respect to the Bonds, however,
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies
heretofore or hereafter enacted.

We are further of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is not
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes. If there is
continuing compliance with the applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
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(the “Code™), we are of the opinion that interest on the Bonds will continue to be excluded from
the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes. We are further of the
opinion that the Bonds are not “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141(a) of
the Code; accordingly, interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of
computing individual or corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Interest on the Bonds,
however, is includable in earnings and profits of a corporation and therefore must be taken into
account when computing corporate alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the
corporate alternative minimum tax.

The Code contains certain requirements that must be satisfied from and after the date
hereof in order to preserve the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes of
interest on the Bonds. These requirements relate to the use and investment of the proceeds of the
Bonds, the payment of certain amounts to the United States, the security and source of payment
of the Bonds and the use of the property financed with the proceeds of the Bonds. The City has
covenanted to comply with these requirements.

Interest on the Bonds is not exempt from Wisconsin income taxes.
Respectfully submitted,
LG/be
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December 20, 2006

The City Comptroller and the
Commissioners of the Public Debt of the
City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin

We have examined a record of proceedings relating to the issuance of $22,100,000
aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 S11
(the “Bonds”) of the City of Milwaukee (the “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of
Wisconsin. The Bonds are authorized and issued pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 65 and
Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the City Charter and by virtue of resolutions passed by
the Common Council of the City on January 18, 2006 and October 24, 2006.

The Bonds constitute an issue of “corporate purpose bonds” under Section 67.05 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, are issuable in fully registered form in the denominations of $5,000 or any
integral multiple thereof, and are dated as of December 20, 2006. The Bonds mature on
January 2, 2008 and bear interest from their date at the rate of three and seventy hundredths
percentum (3.70%) per annum, payable at maturity.

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, as a
whole or in part by lot, on March 2, 2007 and on any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal
to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption.

In our opinion, the Bonds are valid and legally binding general obligations of the City,
and the City has power and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property
within the City for the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon, without limitation as to
rate or amount. The enforceability of rights or remedies with respect to the Bonds, however,
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies
heretofore or hereafter enacted.

We are further of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is not
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes. If there is
continuing compliance with the applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the “Code”), we are of the opinion that interest on the Bonds will continue to be excluded from
the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal income tax purposes. We are further of the
opinion that the Bonds are not “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141(a) of
the Code; accordingly, interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of
computing individual or corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Interest on the Bonds,
however, is includable in earnings and profits of a corporation and therefore must be taken into
account when computing corporate alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the
corporate alternative minimum tax.

The Code contains certain requirements that must be satisfied from and after the date
hereof in order to preserve the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes of
interest on the Bonds. These requirements relate to the use and investment of the proceeds of the
Bonds, the payment of certain amounts to the United States, the security and source of payment
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of the Bonds and the use of the property financed with the proceeds of the Bonds. The City has
covenanted to comply with these requirements.

Interest on the Bonds is not exempt from Wisconsin income taxes.
Respectfully submitted,

LG/be
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MASTER CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Master Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Certificate”) dated as of March 1, 2004 is executed and delivered in
connection with the issuance, from time to time, of municipal securities of the City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the “City”) and
pursuant to resolution 031384 duly adopted by the Common Council of the City on February 10, 2004 (the “Resolution”).
Capitalized terms used in this Certificate shall have the respective meanings specified above or in Article | hereof. Pursuant to the
Resolution, the City agrees as follows:

ARTICLE | - Definitions

Section 1.1. Definitions. The following capitalized terms used in this Certificate shall have the following respective
meanings:

(1) “Annual Financial Information” means, collectively, (i) the financial information and operating data as described
in an Addendum Describing Annual Report (Exhibit B); and (ii) information regarding amendments to this Certificate
required pursuant to Sections 4.2(c) and (d) of this Certificate.

The descriptions contained in clause (i) above of financial information and operating data constituting Annual
Financial Information are of general categories of financial information and operating data. Where such descriptions
include information that no longer can be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially
changed or discontinued, a new Addendum Describing Annual Report shall be executed describing the information to be
provided.

(2) *“Audited Financial Statements” means the annual financial statements, if any, of the City, audited by such auditor
as shall then be required or permitted by State law or the Resolution. Audited Financial Statements shall be prepared in
accordance with GAAP for governmental units as prescribed by GASB; provided, however, that the City may from time to
time, if required by federal or State legal requirements, modify the basis upon which its financial statements are prepared.
Notice of any such modification, other than modifications prescribed by GASB, shall be provided to each NRMSIR and the
SID, and shall include a reference to the specific federal or State law or regulation describing such accounting basis.

(3) “Counsel” means a nationally recognized bond counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws, acceptable to
the City.

(4) “GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles for governmental units as prescribed by GASB.
(5) “GASB” means the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

(6) “Material Event” means any of the following events with respect to the Offered Obligations, whether relating to
the City or otherwise, if material:

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(i) non-payment related defaults;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Offered Obligations;
(vii) modifications to rights of Security Holders;

(viii) bond calls;

(ix) defeasances;

x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Offered Obligations; and
(xi) rating changes.

(7) *“Material Event Notice” means notice of a Material Event.

(8) “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to the provisions of
Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

(9) “NRMSIR” means, at any time, a then existing nationally recognized municipal securities information repository,
as recognized from time to time by the SEC for the purposes referred to in the Rule. The NRMSIRs and filing information
relating to such NRMSIR’s are set forth in the Addendum Describing NRMSIRs (Exhibit A) as may be revised from time
to time.

(10) “Offered Obligations” means an issue of municipal securities of the City in connection with which the City has
executed and delivered a Supplemental Certificate (Exhibit C).

(11) “Official Statement” means the “final official statement” as defined in paragraph (f)(3) of the Rule.

(12) “Rule” means Rule 15c¢2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (17 CFR Part
240, 8240.15c2-12), as in effect on the date of this Certificate, including any amendments and official interpretations
thereof issued either before or after the effective date of this Certificate which are applicable to this Certificate.
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(13) “SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
(14) “Security Holders” means the holders from time to time of Offered Obligations.

(15) “SID” means, at any time, a then-existing state information depository, if any, as operated or designated as such
by or on behalf of the State for the purposes referred to in the Rule. As of the date of this Certificate, there is no SID.

(16) “State” means the State of Wisconsin.

(17) “Unaudited Financial Statements” means the same as Audited Financial Statements, except the same shall not
have been unaudited.

(18) “Underwriters” means the underwriter(s) purchasing an issue of Offered Obligations.
ARTICLE Il - The Undertaking

Section 2.1. Purpose. This Certificate shall apply to Offered Obligations, and shall constitute a written undertaking for the
benefit of the Security Holders, and is being executed and delivered solely to assist the Underwriters in complying with subsection
(b)(5) of the Rule.

Section 2.2. Annual Financial Information. (a) The City shall provide Annual Financial Information for the City with
respect to each fiscal year of the City, by no later than nine months after the end of the respective fiscal year, to each NRMSIR and
the SID.

(b) The City shall provide, in a timely manner, notice of any failure of the City to provide the Annual Financial
Information by the date specified in subsection (a) above to (i) either the MSRB or each NRMSIR, and (ii) the SID.

Section 2.3. Audited Financial Statements. If not provided as part of Annual Financial Information by the dates required
by Section 2.2(a) hereof, the City shall provide Audited Financial Statements, when and if available, to each NRMSIR and the SID.

Section 2.4. Notices of Material Events. (a) If a Material Event occurs, the City shall provide, in a timely manner, a
Material Event Notice to (i) either the MSRB or each NRMSIR and (ii) the SID.

(b) Upon any legal defeasance of an Offered Obligation, the City shall provide notice of such defeasance to (i) each
NRMSIR or the MSRB and (ii) the SID, which notice shall state whether the Offered Obligations to be defeased have been defeased
to maturity or to redemption and the timing of such maturity or redemption.

Section 2.5. Additional Disclosure Obligations. The City acknowledges and understands that other state and federal laws,
including but not limited to the Securities Act of 1933 and SEC Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
may apply to the City, and that under some circumstances compliance with this Certificate, without additional disclosures or other
action, may not fully discharge all duties and obligations of the City under such laws.

Section 2.6. Additional Information. Nothing in this Certificate shall be deemed to prevent the City from disseminating
any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Certificate or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Financial Information or Material Event Notice, in addition to that which is required
by this Certificate. If the City chooses to include any information in any Annual Financial Information or Material Event Notice in
addition to that which is specifically required by this Certificate, the City shall have no obligation under this Certificate to update
such information or include it in any future Annual Financial Information or Material Event Notice.

Section 2.7. No Previous Non-Compliance. The City represents that since July 3, 1995, it has not failed to comply in any
material respect with any previous undertaking in a written contract or agreement specified in paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule.

ARTICLE Il - Operating Rules

Section 3.1. Reference to Other Documents. It shall be sufficient for purposes of Section 2.2 hereof if the City provides
Annual Financial Information by specific reference to documents (i) either (1) provided to each NRMSIR existing at the time of such
reference and the SID, or (2) filed with the SEC, or (ii) if such a document is an Official Statement, available from the MSRB.

Section 3.2. Submission of Information. Annual Financial Information may be provided in one document or multiple
documents, and at one time or in part from time to time.

Section 3.3. Material Event Notices. Each Material Event Notice shall be so captioned and shall prominently state the title,
date and CUSIP numbers of the Offered Obligations.

Section 3.4. Transmission of Information and Notices. Unless otherwise required by law and, in the City’s sole
determination, subject to technical and economic feasibility, the City shall employ such methods of information and notice
transmission as shall be requested or recommended by the herein-designated recipients of the City’s information and notices.

ARTICLE IV - Termination, Amendment and Enforcement

Section 4.1. Termination. (a) The City’s obligations under this Certificate with respect to an Offered Obligation shall
terminate upon legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of the Offered Obligation.



(b) This Certificate or any provision hereof, shall be null and void in the event that the City (1) delivers to the City an
opinion of Counsel, addressed to the City, to the effect that those portions of the Rule which require the provisions of this Certificate
or any of such provisions, do not or no longer apply to the Offered Obligations, whether because such portions of the Rule are
invalid, have been repealed, or otherwise, as shall be specified in such opinion, and (2) delivers copies of such opinion to each
NRMSIR and the SID.

Section 4.2. Amendment. (a) This Certificate may be amended, by written certificate of the Comptroller, without the
consent of the Security Holders if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) such amendment is made in connection with a
change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal (including regulatory) requirements, a change in law (including rules or
regulations) or in interpretations thereof, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the City or the type of business conducted
thereby; (2) this Certificate as so amended would have complied with the requirements of the Rule as of the date of this Certificate,
after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; (3) the City shall
have received an opinion of Counsel addressed to the City, to the same effect as set forth in clause (2) above and further to the effect
that the amendment does not materially impair the interests of the Security Holders; and (4) the City delivers copies of such opinion
and amendment to each NRMSIR and the SID.

(b) In addition to subsection (a) above, this Certificate may be amended and any provision of this Certificate may be
waived, without the consent of the Security Holders, if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) an amendment to the Rule is
adopted, or a new or modified official interpretation of the Rule is issued, after the effective date hereof which is applicable to this
Certificate; (2) the City shall have received an opinion of Counsel to the effect that performance by the City under this Certificate as
so amended or giving effect to such waiver, as the case may be, will not result in a violation of the Rule; and (3) the City shall have
delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to each NRMSIR and the SID.

(c) To the extent any amendment to this Certificate results in a change in the types of financial information or operating
data provided pursuant to this Certificate, the first Annual Financial Information provided thereafter shall include a narrative
explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change.

(d) If an amendment is made to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, other than
changes prescribed by GASB, the Annual Financial Information for the year in which the change is made shall present a comparison
between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the
basis of the former accounting principles. Such comparison shall include a qualitative and, to the extent reasonably feasible,
quantitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the
presentation of the financial information. Notice of any such amendment shall be provided by the City to (i) either the MSRB or each
NRMSIR, and (ii) the SID.

Section 4.3. Benefit; Third-Party Beneficiaries; Enforcement. (a) The provisions of this Certificate shall constitute a
contract with and inure solely to the benefit of the Security Holders. Beneficial owners of Offered Obligations shall be third-party
beneficiaries of this Certificate.

(b) Except as provided in this subparagraph (b), the provisions of this Certificate shall create no rights in any person or
entity. The obligations of the City to comply with the provisions of this Certificate shall be enforceable by the Security Holders,
including beneficial owners of Offered Obligations. The Security Holders’ rights to enforce the provisions of this Certificate shall be
limited solely to a right, by action in mandamus or for specific performance, to compel performance of the City’s obligations under
this Certificate and the Resolution. In consideration of the third-party beneficiary status of beneficial owners of Offered Obligations
pursuant to subsection (a) of this Section, beneficial owners shall be deemed to be Security Holders for purposes of this
subsection (b).

(c) Any failure by the City to perform in accordance with this Certificate shall not constitute a default under the
Resolution and any rights and remedies provided by the Resolution upon the occurrence of a default shall not apply to any such
failure.

(d) This Certificate shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State, and any suits and actions
arising out of this Certificate shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State; provided, however, that to the extent
this Certificate addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Certificate shall be construed in accordance with
such federal securities laws and official interpretations thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto executed this Certificate this 1st day of March, 2004.

CITY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

By:

Comptroller



ADDENDUM DESCRIBING NRMSIRs
This Addendum Describing NRMSIRs (the "Addendum®) is delivered by the City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the
"Issuer™) pursuant to the Master Continuing Disclosure Certificate, executed and delivered by the Issuer and dated
March 1, 2004. This Addendum describes the filing information relating to the Nationally Recognized Municipal
Securities Information Repositories approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Repositories and Contact Information

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission interpretive letter to the Texas Municipal Advisory

Council (the “MAC”) dated September 7, 2004, the Issuer elects to transmit filings to the MAC as provided

at http://www.disclosureusa.org for submission to the NRMSIRs and any applicable SID.

Disclosure USA
www.disclosureusa.org

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto executed this Addendum this 1% day of March, 2005.

CITY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

By:

Comptroller
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ADDENDUM DESCRIBING ANNUAL REPORT
FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT OF THE ISSUER

This Addendum Describing Annual Report for General Obligation Debt (the "Addendum™) is delivered by
the City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") pursuant to the Master Continuing Disclosure Certificate
(the "Certificate™), executed and delivered by the Issuer and dated March 1, 2004. This Addendum
describes the content of Annual Financial Information prepared with respect to general obligation debt of

the Issuer. Capitalized terms that are not defined in this Addendum have the meanings set forth in the
Certificate.

Content of Annual Financial Information for Issuer:

Audited Financial Statements, if available, or Unaudited Financial Statements of the Issuer.

In addition to the financial statements, unaudited operating data concerning the following
matters shall be presented: (i) revenues received by the Issuer, (ii) expenditures made by the
Issuer, (iii) budgets, (iv) selected financial data concerning the General Fund, (v) information
concerning interfund borrowings, (vi) pertinent information on significant pending litigation,
(vii) balances, debt limit, and trends of outstanding Issuer obligations, and (viii) statistical
information on the economic condition of the City of Milwaukee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto executed this Addendum this 1% day of March, 2004.

CITY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

By:

Comptroller



SUPPLEMENTAL CERTIFICATE

This Supplemental Certificate is executed and delivered by the City of Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the
"Issuer™) to supplement the Master Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Certificate"), executed and delivered
by the Issuer and dated March 1, 2004. Pursuant to the provisions of the Certificate, the Issuer hereby determines
that the Certificate and the Addendum Describing Annual Report, as described below, shall apply to the following
issue of obligations:

Name of Obligations:
$25,205,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2006 N9
$19,105,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 B10
$22,100,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006 S11
Addendum Describing Annual Report:
ADDENDUM DESCRIBING ANNUAL REPORT
FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT OF THE ISSUER
Date of Issues:
December 20, 2006
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have caused this Supplemental Certificate to be executed this
20™ day of December, 2006.

CITY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

By:
Comptroller
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APPENDIX D

SPECIMEN OF MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY
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Authorized Officer.

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE INC.

By

Authorized Officer

subsidia] of

Fﬁanmal Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. (212) 826-0100

31 West 52™ Street, New York, N.Y. 10019
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